July 19, 2019
To:

Columbia Association Board of Directors
(E-Mail: Board.Members.FY20@ColumbiaAssociation.org)
CA Management

From:

Andrew C. Stack, Board Chair

The Columbia Association Board of Directors Meeting will be held on Thursday,
July 25, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. at Columbia Association headquarters, 6310 Hillside Court,
Suite 100, Columbia, MD 21046.
AGENDA
1.

2.
3.
4.
5.

6.

7.

8.

Call to Order
(a) Announce Directors/Senior Staff in Attendance
(b) Reminder that the meeting is being recorded/broadcast
(c) Inquire if any Board members are attending remotely via phone
Announcement of Closed/Special Meetings Held/To Be Held
Approval of Agenda
Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest
Resident Speakout
3 Minutes per Individual; 5 Minutes per Group; 1 Minute for Response to
Questions
Reports/Presentations – Part One
(a) Financial Reports
1. FY 19 Audited Financial Statements
th
2. FY 19 4 Quarter Financial Report
(b) Dashboard and Quarterly Update on Membership Information
Board Action
(a) Consent Agenda
1. Approval of Minutes – June 27, 2019
2. Approval of Advisory Committees’ Proposed Charges for FY 2020
(b) Board Votes
1
Budget Parameters, Annual Charge Rate and Cap for the Draft
FY 2021 Budget
(c) Board Discussion
1. Update on Plans to Renovate Supreme Sports Club-Phase 2
2. Development Tracker
3. Capital Projects and Open Space Updates
4. Tying Advisory Committees’ Proposed Charges for FY 2020 to One
or More Strategic Priorities in CA’s Strategic Plan for FY 2020-2024
Chairman’s Remarks

5 min.

Page Nos.

1 min.
1 min.
1 min.

55 min.
(10 min.)

(45 min.)

3 - 25
26
27 - 35

1 min.
36 - 38
15 min.
39 - 48
55 min.
(15 min.)
(15 min.)
(15 min.)

49 - 64
65 - 86

(10 min.)
3 min.

87 - 89
90 - 91

9.

10.

11.
12.
13.

Reports/Presentations – Part Two
(a) President’s Report – See written report – Follow-up questions from the
BOD
(b) Report from the CA Representatives to the Inner Arbor Trust Board of
Directors
Tracking Forms
(a) Tracking Form for Board Requests
(b) Tracking Form for Resident Requests
Potential New Topics
Talking Points
Adjournment – Anticipated Ending Time: Approximately 10:00 p.m.

15 min.
(10 min.)

92 - 99

(5 min.)
5 min.

100
101
102

5 min.
2 min.

Next Board Work Session and Meeting
(No Board Work Session or Board Meeting in August)
Thursday, September 12, 2019 – Board Work Session – 7:00 p.m.
Thursday, September 26, 2019 – Board Meeting – 7:00 p.m.

ARRANGEMENTS FOR AN INTERPRETER FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED CAN BE MADE BY
CALLING 410-715-3111 AT LEAST THREE DAYS IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING.

CA Mission Statement
Engage our diverse community, cultivate a unique sense of place, and enhance quality of life.

CA Vision Statement
CA creates and supports solutions to meet the evolving needs of a dynamic and inclusive
community.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors
Columbia Association, Inc.
Columbia, Maryland

9

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Columbia Association, Inc., which
comprise the statement of financial position as of April 30, 2019 and 2018, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the
related notes to financial statements.

18
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Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

ra
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Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

D

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly,
we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

1

Board of Directors
Columbia Association, Inc.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Columbia Association, Inc. as of April 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in
its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

9

Other Matters
Effect of Adopting New Accounting Standard
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, management has adopted Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit
Entities. Our opinion is not modified with respect to that matter.
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
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Baltimore, Maryland
REPORT DATE

2

Columbia Association, Inc.
Statements of Financial Position
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Assets
2019
$

99
2,944
1,707
6,596
3,544
135,600
319

9

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Risk management fund
Workers' compensation fund
Property, facilities and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net

$

68
3,188
1,663
6,478
3,487
130,293
319

$

150,809

$

145,496

$

11,001
13,791
4,466

$

5,905
15,472
4,524

18
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Total assets

2018

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities
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Line of credit
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

D

Term debt
Term loan, net of deferred financing costs
Capital lease obligations
Total term debt

Total liabilities
Net assets
Net assets without donor restrictions
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$

See Notes to Financial Statements.
3

29,258

25,901

22,150
195

23,890
335

22,345

24,225

51,603

50,126

99,206

95,370

99,206

95,370

150,809

$

145,496

Columbia Association, Inc.
Statements of Activities
Years Ended April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

2019

$

40,867
26,264
4,790
153
778
(82)
164
60

$

9

Revenue
Annual charge
Sport and fitness
Community services
Communications and marketing
Open space and facility services
Village community associations
Interest income and other
Unrealized (loss) gain on marketable securities

2018

72,994

ra

Supporting services:
Administrative

ft

Total program services

7-

Expenses
Program services:
Sport and fitness
Community services
Communications and marketing
Open space and facility services
Village community associations

70,630

18
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Total revenue

Total expenses

D

Increase in net assets without donor restrictions
Net assets without donor restrictions, beginning of year
Net assets without donor restrictions, ending of year

See Notes to Financial Statements.
4

$

38,849
25,697
4,680
165
981
9
252
(3)

30,213
6,558
2,843
14,315
5,145

28,710
6,291
2,937
14,149
4,910

59,074

56,997

10,084

9,375

69,158

66,372

3,836

4,258

95,370

91,112

99,206

$

95,370

Columbia Association, Inc.
Statements of Functional Expenses
Year Ended April 30, 2019
(in Thousands)

Insurance
Fees
Rentals
Taxes
Utilities
Repairs & Maintenance
Comm. Assoc. Annual
Charge Share Grant
Depreciation
Allocations

Open Space and
Facility Services

Village Community
Associations

$

$

$

$

$

11,946

3,490

1,369

4,293

-

Total
Program
$

21,098

Administrative
$

Total

4,899

$ 25,997

11
16
1,735
2,723
345

21
15
345
820
-

32
31
2,080
3,543
345

6
13
1,019
1,282
332

1
286
380
12

3
3
106
232
1

1
324
829
-

1,892

597

1,624

550

21

236
843
1,205
512
1,326
2,469

38
971
237
2
81
132

268
248
1
19
75

223
2,192
139
8
99
1,627

30
416
7
2
10
446

4,684
527
4,690
1,836
525
1,535
4,749

430
130
1,353
397
24
509
727

5,114
657
6,043
2,233
549
2,044
5,476

5,682
1,450

139
192

3,692
338

3,226
913
74

3,226
10,468
906

379
35

3,226
10,847
941

30,213

6,558

14,315

5,145

59,074

10,084

69,158

42
(1,148)
2,843

D
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Total functional
expenses

Communication
and Marketing

-

9

Contract Labor
Payroll Taxes
Employee Benefits
Cost Of Sales
Operating
Supplies/Expenses

Community
Services

18
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Salary & Wages
Annual Performance
Incentives

Sport and
Fitness

See Notes to Financial Statements.
5

Columbia Association, Inc.
Statements of Functional Expenses
Year Ended April 30, 2018
(in Thousands)

Salary & Wages
Annual Performance
Incentives

$

11,231

$

3,321

Communication
and Marketing

Open Space and
Facility Services

Village Community
Associations

$

$

$

1,465
2

8

5
959
1,193
378

1
277
371
16

114
238
14

280
788
-

1,837

665

1,860

620

Insurance
Fees
Rentals
Taxes
Utilities
Repairs & Maintenance
Comm. Assoc. Annual
Charge Share Grant

214
623
1,187
416
1,532
2,430
-

34
972
251
2
78
176
-

195
232
15
61
-

227
2,023
148
7
109
1,832
-

Depreciation
Allocations

4,972
1,723

116
11

28,710

6,291

33
(1,292)

$

-

20,197
20
6
1,630
2,590
408

28
416
1
3
11
305
3,220

4,982
503
4,229
1,819
428
1,745
4,804

3,514
413

851
75

3,220
9,486
930

14,149

4,910

56,997
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2,937

Total
Program

18
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-

4,180

Contract Labor
Payroll Taxes
Employee Benefits
Cost Of Sales
Operating
Supplies/Expenses

Total functional
expenses

10

Community
Services

9

Sport and
Fitness

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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Administrative
$

Total

4,543

$ 24,740

27

47
27
1,948
3,330
409

21
318
740
1
499
120
1,208
412
25
439
722
437
(137)
9,375

5,481
623
5,437
2,231
453
2,184
5,526
3,220
9,923
793

66,372

Columbia Association, Inc.
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)
2019

3,836

$

Net cash provided by operating activities

7-

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of investments held by trustees
Proceeds from maturities of investments held by trustees
Purchase of property, facilities and equipment
Proceeds from the sale of equipment

ft

Net cash used in investing activities

D

ra

Cash flows from financing activities
Net borrowings (repayments) under line of credit
Principal payments on capital lease obligations
Principal payments on term loan
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

4,258

10,847
327
13
1,149
(60)

9,923
602
14
1,170
3

(83)
(44)
(1,681)
(58)

3,465
63
2,625
(4,020)

14,246

18,103

(15,637)
15,522
(17,533)
230

(17,241)
16,982
(23,774)
78

(17,418)

(23,955)

5,096
(140)
(1,753)

5,905
(140)
(1,690)

3,203

4,075

9

$

18
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Cash flows from operating activities
Increase in unrestricted net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in unrestricted net assets
to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation expense and amortization
Bad debt expense
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Unrealized loss (gain) on marketable securities
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue

2018

31

(1,777)

68

1,845

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

$

99

$

68

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for interest

$

917

$

942

See Notes to Financial Statements.
7

Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Note 1 - Organization and summary of significant accounting policies
Organization
Columbia Association, Inc. (the "Association") is a nonprofit membership corporation, incorporated
under Maryland law. It develops and operates recreation and community facilities; provides
community programs and assistance; and maintains and develops park land and open space in
Columbia, Maryland. The Association is governed by an eleven-member Board of Directors
comprised of the Association's President and ten members elected by residents of each of the ten
villages.

18
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9

Use of estimates in preparing financial statements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

7-

Cash and cash equivalents
The Association defines cash equivalents as all highly liquid investments with maturities of ninety
days or less when acquired, except when such investments are held by trustees for the risk
management and workers' compensation funds.

ft

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable consist principally of membership fees receivable, which are uncollateralized
and generally have a term of one year. Accounts receivable also include annual charge balances,
which are collateralized by the related property.

D

ra

The carrying amount of accounts receivable is reduced by a valuation allowance. The reserve for
abatements and allowance for doubtful accounts is based on management's assessment of the
collectability of specific accounts and the amount of abatements residents will receive on their
property assessment.
Risk management fund
Under the Association's risk management program, self-insured claims for general liability risks are
accrued based on the best estimate of the ultimate cost of both asserted claims and unasserted
claims from reported incidents and estimated losses from unreported incidents. Such estimates are
reviewed by counsel. The Association is funding the risk management program under a trust fund
arrangement, which currently provides for funding as actuarially determined by independent
actuaries.

8

Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Workers' compensation fund
The Association has a self-insurance program for workers' compensation. Under this program, the
Association has a workers' compensation fund for its estimate of the ultimate cost of both asserted
and unasserted claims from reported workers' compensation incidents and estimated losses from
unreported incidents. Claims and fund expenses are paid directly out of the workers' compensation
fund. The program includes a trust deposit escrow account in the name of Maryland Workers'
Compensation Commission for the benefit of the Association. The investment level of the fund is
periodically reviewed by the State of Maryland Workers' Compensation Commission and by
independent actuaries.

18
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9

Investments held by trustees
Investments held by trustees consisting of money market funds and U.S. Government mortgage
bonds and treasuries are stated at fair value and are reflected in the risk management fund and
workers' compensation fund on the statements of financial position.

7-

Property, facilities and equipment, net
Land includes approximately 3,600 acres of land that has been contributed to the Association since
the establishment of the community of Columbia and is recorded at zero value. The contributed
land is subject to a zoning ordinance limiting its usage to public or community usage. Costs of
parks, lakes and related permanent land improvements are accounted for as land and are not
depreciated because they have an indefinite useful life. Facilities, equipment and land
improvements that have a limited life are stated at cost and are depreciated using the straight-line
method.

ft

Assets

10 to 40 years
20 to 25 years
3 to 10 years

D
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Building and recreational facilities
Land improvements
Furniture, equipment and other

Estimated
useful lives

Expenditures are capitalized if the expenditure results in a new asset with a useful life of at least
two years and meets the monetary threshold or represents an addition to an existing asset that
materially improves or extends the asset beyond its original intended function or increases the
useful life by at least two years. The monetary threshold is defined as $2,500 for a single item
except for certain equipment or livestock, which should be capitalized if a single item costs at least
$1,500. This includes an expenditure that is for a group of identical or coordinating items with a total
cost of at least $2,500 that are purchased together and replaced at the same time.
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, requires that an impairment loss
be recognized only if the carrying amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable from its
undiscounted cash flows and that the measurement of any impairment loss be the difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of the asset. There were no impairment losses
recognized during the periods ended April 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

9

Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Intangible assets
Goodwill relates to the purchase of land. The annual charge resulting from this transaction exceeds
the carrying amount of the goodwill and therefore no adjustment to carrying value is deemed
necessary.
Deferred financing costs
Expenses related to the term loan are being amortized using the effective interest method over the
term of the respective debt. Accumulated amortization as of April 30, 2019 and 2018 was $73 and
$60, respectively. Amortization expense for the periods ended April 30, 2019 and 2018 was $13
and $14, respectively. Estimated future amortization expense is as follows:
Amortization
expense
$

12
11
10
9
8
21

18
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2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025 and thereafter

9

Year ending
April 30,

7-

$

71

ra
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Revenue recognition
Annual charge revenue consists of annual charges for which future services are not required and
are recognized as revenue when the annual charges are levied and due. Membership and other
fees are recognized as revenue on a pro rata basis during the membership period with unearned
fees recorded as deferred revenue.

D

Rental expense
Rental expense is recognized over the lease terms as it becomes payable according to the
provisions of the respective leases. However, if the rental expense varies from a straight-line basis,
future rental expense including scheduled and specific rent increase and/or rent concession are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Advertising
The Association uses advertising to promote its programs among the audiences it serves. The
costs of advertising are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotion costs totaled $849 and
$670 for the periods ended April 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Income taxes
Although exempt from federal and state income taxes as provided for under Section 501(c)(4) of the
Internal Revenue Code, the Association is subject to federal and state taxes on unrelated business
income, if any.
The Association adopted the guidance provided in Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes on
April 1, 2009. Management has determined that the Association has no material uncertain tax
positions that would require recognition under the guidance. The federal and state income tax
returns of the Association are subject to examination by the IRS and state taxing authorities,
generally for three years after they were filed. Net unrelated business income was $0 for the
periods ended April 30, 2019 and 2018.

18
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9

Functional Allocation of Expenses
The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statements of activities. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services that benefit from those costs.
Reclassifications
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year presentation.

7-

Subsequent events
The Association evaluated subsequent events through REPORT DATE, the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.
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Change in Accounting Principle
On August 18, 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting
Standards Update (ASU) 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) – Presentation of Financial
Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The update addresses the complexity and understandability of
net asset classification, deficiencies in information about liquidity and availability of resources, and
the lack of consistency in the type of information provided about expenses and investment return.
The Association has implemented ASU 2016-14 and has adjusted the presentation in these
financial statements accordingly. All changes have been applied retrospectively as required, with
the exception of the presentation of the liquidity disclosure included in Note 5, which has been
applied prospectively to 2019 as permitted by the accounting standards update.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Note 2 - Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable are comprised of the following as of April 30, 2019 and 2018:
2019
Membership fees
Annual charges
Other

$

2,594
691
571

Note 3 - Investments and other assets

3,007
847
579
4,433

912

1,245

2,944

18
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$

$

3,856

9

Total accounts receivable
Less reserves for abatements and allowance
for doubtful accounts

2018

$

3,188

7-

Risk management fund
Investments included in the risk management fund are held by a Trustee and are combined in a
portfolio, which consists of the following as of April 30, 2019 and 2018:
2019

2018

Fair value

ft

Cost

Cost

Fair value

50
6,448
61

$

50
6,485
61

$

134
6,335
25

$

134
6,319
25

$

6,559

$

6,596

$

6,494

$

6,478

D

ra

Cash and cash equivalents $
Government debt securities
Accrued interest

Workers' compensation fund
Investments included in the workers' compensation fund are held by a Trustee in a portfolio, which
consists of the following as of April 30, 2019 and 2018:
2019

2018

Cost

Fair value

Cost

Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents $
Government debt securities
Accrued interest

165
3,351
15

$

165
3,364
15

$

120
3,358
5

$

120
3,362
5

$

3,531

$

3,544

$

3,483

$

3,487

12

Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Note 4 - Fair value measurements
In determining fair value, the Association uses various valuation approaches within the fair value
measurement framework. Fair value measurements are determined based on the assumptions that
market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability.
Professional guidance establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that
maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring
that the most observable inputs be used when available. The levels within the hierarchy based on
the reliability of inputs as follows:
Level 1 - Valuations based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets;

•

Level 2 - Valuations based on quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities or identical
assets or liabilities in less active markets, such as dealer or broker markets; and

•

Level 3 - Valuations derived from valuation techniques in which one or more significant
inputs or significant value drivers are unobservable, such as pricing models, discounted
cash flow models and similar techniques not based on market, exchange, dealer or brokertraded transactions.

7-

18
-1

9

•

ft

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair
value and their classification in the valuation hierarchy.

ra

Trading and available-for-sale securities
Debt securities consisting of government agency debt obligations are generally valued at the most
recent price of the equivalent quoted yield for such securities, or those of comparable maturity,
quality and type.

D

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value by classification within the
fair value hierarchy as of April 30, 2019:
Fair value measurements using
Quoted prices
Significant
in active
other
markets for
observable
identical assets
inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
Government debt securities*

$

-

13

$

9,849

Total
$

9,849

Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value by classification within the
fair value hierarchy as of April 30, 2018:
Fair value measurements using
Quoted prices
Significant
in active
other
markets for
observable
identical assets
inputs
(Level 1)
(Level 2)
$

-

$

9,681

$

9,681

9

Government debt securities*

Total

18
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*Government debt securities are included in the risk management fund and workers' compensation
fund as discussed in Note 3.
Note 5 – Liquidity

Total assets at year end

ft

Less:

7-

Columbia Association, Inc. financial assets available within one year of the statement of financial
position date for general expenditures are as follows:
150,809

$

1,707
6,596
3,544
135,600
319

$

3,043

D

ra

Prepaid expenses and other assets
Risk management fund
Workers' compensation fund
Property, facilities and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net

$

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for
general expenditures within one year

Columbia Association has $3,043 of financial assets available within one year on the statement of
financial position date to meet cash needs for general expenditures consisting of cash of $99 and
accounts receivable of $2,944. Accounts receivable consist principally of membership fees receivable,
which are uncollateralized and generally have a term of one year. Accounts receivable also include
annual charge balances, which are collateralized by the related property. None of the financial assets
are subject to any contractual restrictions that make them unavailable for general expenditures within
one year of the statement of financial position.
In addition, in the event of unanticipated liquidity needs, CA has a line of credit in the amount of
$33,000 of which $11,001 was committed as of April 30, 2019. This line of credit is used to meet
liquidity needs.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Columbia Association‘s operating activity generates positive cash flow of approximately $15,590 based
on a five year average of cash provided by operating activities. The cash is used to fund capital projects
and debt service. Any additional funds needed for approved expenditures are obtained from line of
credit borrowings.
Note 6 - Property, facilities and equipment, net
Property, facilities and equipment consist of the following as of April 30, 2019 and 2018:
2019
$

7-

$

6,533
10,391
77,990
127,833
31,133
5,261

268,483

259,141

132,883

128,848

135,600

$

130,293

ra

ft

Property, facilities and equipment, net

Note 7 - Annual charge

$

18
-1

Total property, facilities and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

6,533
10,387
83,191
135,579
29,212
3,581

9

Land
Parks, lakes and related improvements
Land improvements
Buildings and recreation facilities
Furniture, equipment and other
Construction-in-progress

2018

D

The principal source of the Association's revenue is an annual charge, based on a rate (68 cents
per $100 of assessed valuation in both fiscal years 2019 and 2018) established annually by the
Board of Directors, on all of Columbia's assessable real property. The Association's net assessed
value is 50% of the State's assessed phased-in cash value subject to a 10% annual increase cap;
however, the Board of Directors capped the increase at 3.5% for fiscal years 2019 and 2018.
The net assessed value for assessment years beginning July 1 was as follows:
2019
2018

$

11,898,862
11,371,188

Note 8 - Line of credit
The Association has available an unsecured line of credit with a bank, which, under a loan
agreement, is limited to borrowings of $33,000. The outstanding note bears interest at the lower of
the bank's prime rate or LIBOR plus 55 basis points (3.03% and 2.45% as of April 30, 2019 and
2018, respectively) and is due on demand. Additionally, the note bears an unused commitment fee
of 10 basis points on any difference between the preauthorized schedule of the projected
outstanding balance and the amount of the credit actually used. The Association had $11,001 and
$5,905 outstanding under the line of credit as of April 30, 2019 and 2018.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Note 9 - Term debt
Term loan
On June 26, 2014, the Association entered into a 15-year fixed rate bank loan with TD Bank in the
amount of $30,000. The loan's interest rate is 3.63% and matures in fiscal year 2030. The
Association began making monthly principal and interest payments in August 2014 for the term of
the loan. The funds were used to refinance certain interim indebtedness incurred to finance capital
improvements. As of April 30, 2019, the future loan principal payments are as follows:

Total term loan

Less deferred financing costs, net

$

22,221
(71)
22,150

7-

Term loan, net

1,817
1,887
1,957
2,031
2,105
12,424

9

$

18
-1

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025 and thereafter

Capital lease obligation

ra

ft

The cost and accumulated amortization of equipment under capital leases were $574 and $468,
respectively, as of April 30, 2019, and $574 and $351, respectively, as of April 30, 2018. As of
April 30, 2019, the future minimum annual payments under capital leases are as follows:
$

D

2020
2021

Total minimum lease payments

197

Less amount representing interest
Present value of net minimum lease payments

143
54

(2)
$

195

Note 10 - Retirement benefit plan
Substantially all full-time and eligible part-time employees are covered by a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan. Contributions are based on 6% of eligible employees' salaries. Employees
become fully vested after six years of service. Expenses under this plan were $1,189 and $1,149
for the periods ended April 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Note 11 - Commitments
The Association leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases. Rental expense,
exclusive of these costs, was $2,093 and $2,084 for the periods ended April 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.
The Association records rent expense using the straight-line method over the life of the lease terms,
which differs from the amount of rent due under the terms of the leases, resulting in a deferred rent
payable, of $486 and $414, which was included in accounts payable and accrued expenses as of
April 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

9

As of April 30, 2019, the Association's total commitment for minimum annual rentals, exclusive of
maintenance and other occupancy costs, under non-cancellable operating leases is:
$

1,578
1,610
1,642
1,675
1,708
4,579

$

12,792

Total

7-

18
-1

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025 and Thereafter

ra

ft

The lease for the headquarters building located on Hillside Court includes a rent abatement for the
period September 1, 2015 to July 31, 2016 valued at $460. Accrued abatements of $327 and $363
were included in accounts payable and accrued expenses as of April 30, 2019 and 2018,
respectively.

D

The lease for Haven on the Lake includes a rent abatement for the period September 1, 2014 to
August 31, 2015 valued at $386. Accrued abatements of $222 and $257 were included in accounts
payable and accrued expenses as of April 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The lease also includes
a tenant improvement allowance of $1,378. Accrued allowances of $913 and $978 were included in
accounts payable as of April 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The abatements and allowances are
amortized over the life of the lease and are reflected as a reduction of rent expense as reported in
the statements of activities.
Note 12 - Postretirement health care
The Association sponsors a defined postretirement medical benefit plan that covers both salaried
and nonsalaried full-time employees and their spouses or surviving spouses. The postretirement
health care plan is contributory. The Association will provide a maximum contribution of $2.5 to
retired employees and their spouses for employees who have 20 or more years of full-time service
with the Association and have passed their 60th birthday. This contribution will decrease to a
maximum of $1.5 when the retiree reaches age 65. This benefit terminates on the 10th anniversary
of the benefit commencement date. The employee contributes the remainder of the health care
cost.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

The following table sets forth the funded status of the Association's postretirement health care
benefit plan reconciled to the accrued postretirement benefits cost recognized by the Association as
of April 30:
2019

Obligation at end of year

705
32
29
(5)
(15)
(17)

7-

Amount not yet recognized in net periodic
postretirement benefit costs
Unrecognized prior service credit
Unrecognized gain

678
31
27
(5)
(15)
(11)

$

729

$

705

$

112

$

112

$

112

$

112

$

32
29
-

$

31
27
-

ft

Total amount not yet recognized in net periodic
postretirement benefit costs

$

9

$

18
-1

Reconciliation of benefit obligations
Obligation at beginning of year
Service cost
Interest cost
Actuarial gain
Amortization of net loss
Amortization of unrecognized past service cost
Benefit payments

2018

D

ra

Net periodic postretirement benefit costs
include
Service cost
Interest cost
Amortization of net gain from prior periods
Amortization of unrecognized prior
service cost
Net periodic postretirement benefit costs

15
$

76

(15)
$

43

The discount rate was 4.45% as of April 30, 2019 and 2018. The gross trend rate for health care
coverage is 10.0% grading to 4.45% over five years.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the
health care plans. A one percent change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the
following effects:
1% increase
Effect on total service and interest cost
components of net periodic postretirement
health care benefit cost
Effect on the health care component of the
accumulated postretirement benefit
obligation

$

1% decrease

8

(7)

(79)

9

90

$

18
-1

The following is a projection of expected future benefits under the plan:
$

7-

2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025 - 2027

449

ft

$

33
39
51
54
57
215

Note 13 - Significant estimates

D

ra

Reserve for general liability self-insurance
Under its general liability self-insurance plan, the Association accrues the estimated expense of
general liability claims based on claims filed subsequent to year-end and an additional amount for
incurred, but not yet reported claims based on prior experience. Accruals for such costs of $1,287
and $1,327 are included in accrued expenses as of April 30, 2019 and 2018. Claim payments
based on actual claims ultimately filed could differ materially from these estimates.
Reserve for workers' compensation self-insurance
Under its workers' compensation self-insurance plan, the Association accrues the estimated
expense of workers' compensation claims based on claims filed subsequent to year-end and an
additional amount for incurred, but not yet reported claims based on prior experience.
Accruals for such costs of $2,358 and $2,366 are included in accrued expenses as of April 30, 2019
and 2018, respectively. Claim payments based on actual claims ultimately filed could differ
materially from these estimates.
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Columbia Association, Inc.
Notes to Financial Statements
April 30, 2019 and 2018
(in Thousands)

Note 14 - Concentration of credit risk
The Association maintains its cash balance in several accounts in various banks. At times, these
balances may exceed the federal insurance limits; however, the Association has not experienced
any losses with respect to its bank balances in excess of government provided insurance.
Management believes that no significant concentration of credit risk exists with respect to these
cash balances as of April 30, 2019.
Note 15 - Contingencies

D

ra

ft

7-

18
-1

9

The Association is periodically a party to various lawsuits, claims and investigations, both actual
and potential arising in the normal course of business. Based on internal review and advice of legal
counsel, management believes the ultimate outcome of these matters, individually and in the
aggregate, will not have a material adverse effect on the Association's financial position or results of
operations.
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July 18, 2019

To:

Members of the Columbia Association Board of Directors
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

From:

Susan Krabbe, Vice President and CFO

Cc:

Jackie Tuma, Director of Internal Audit
Lynn Schwartz, Director of Finance/Treasurer

Subject:

Independent Audit Report of CA’s Incentive Savings Plan

The Audit Committee will be reviewing the Independent Audit Report of CA’s Incentive Savings
Plan (as of December 31, 2018) at their July 23, 2019 meeting. We anticipate that the
committee members will vote to recommend that the Board of Directors be presented with the
Independent Audit Report of CA’s Incentive Savings Plan for calendar year 2018 at that
meeting. This report was shared with CA Board members as part of the materials for the July
23, 2019 Audit Committee meeting.
If you have any questions, please let me know.

1

July 19, 2019

To:

Members of the Columbia Association Board of Directors
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

From:

Susan Krabbe, Vice President/CFO

cc:

Jackie Tuma, Director of Internal Audit

Subject:

Fourth Quarter FY 2019 Financial Report

The Audit Committee will review the FY 19 Fourth Quarter Financial Report at their July
23, 2019 meeting. We anticipate that the committee members will vote to recommend
that the Board of Directors be presented with the FY 19 Fourth Quarter Financial Report
at that meeting. Each Board member has received via courier the Financial Report. In
addition, the link to the Financial Report has been posted as back-up material to the July
26, 2019 Board meeting. The file is too large to post, and so to access the report on
line, go to
http://www.columbiaassociation.org; select About Us; Financials; Quarterly Financial
Reports; Financial Reports to the Board; then select “FY19 Fourth Quarter” from the list
of financial reports posted.
If you have any questions, please let me know.

July 17, 2019
To:

Columbia Association Board of Directors
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

From:

Susan Krabbe, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Cc:

Dan Burns, Director; Department of Sport and Fitness
Laura Sitler, Chief Marketing Officer
Lynn Schwartz, Director of Finance/Treasurer

Re:

Dashboard Metrics

The dashboard for the fourth quarter of FY 2019 is attached. The table below describes the
metrics, and notes the data source and date of the measurement. In response to Board member
requests, we added the graph described below as “1a” for your consideration last quarter, either
to replace the existing graph for the first metric or as an addition to the dashboard.
1

1a

2

3

4

5

Metric
Net Change in
Past Due
Membership
Accounts
Past Due
Membership
Accounts
Net Membership
Changes

Description/Purpose
To monitor collections by tracking
the trend in membership account
dollars over 90 days past due

Data Source
Spectrum NG
reports

Date of Measurement
As of April 30, 2019

Added in response to Board
member requests. Shows actual
past due membership accounts
To monitor member
retention/growth by major
membership category over time

Spectrum NG
reports

As of April 30, 2019

Data as of April 30,
2019. This was
provided with the FY
19 Q4 financial
reports.

CA People
Productivity =
personnel costs
divided by nonannual charge
revenue
Free Cash Flow

To monitor the revenue
production from CA’s investment
in the work force

Spectrum NG
reports and sales
data collected by
the Customer
and Member
Service Center
Infor (Lawson)
reports

To monitor liquidity by tracking
cash flow from operations less
debt principal payments less paid
capital expenditures

Infor (Lawson)
reports

As of April 30, 2019

Net Assets to Debt
Service (should be
greater than
1.25:1.00)

To monitor CA’s financial
condition, in accordance with the
terms of existing financing

Infor (Lawson)
reports

Actual audited data
through April 30,
2019

1

Actual data for FY 19

6

7

Metric
Total Liabilities to
Total Net Assets
(should be less
than 1.30:1.00)
Return on
Investment –
Buildings, Major
Amenities

Description/Purpose
To monitor CA’s financial
condition, in accordance with the
terms of existing financing

Data Source
Infor (Lawson)
reports

Date of Measurement
Actual audited data
through April 30,
2019

To measure and monitor the cost
of maintaining CA’s major
facilities by comparing annual
repairs and maintenance costs to
revenue and square footage
Per Board request – to track
memberships per housing unit

Infor (Lawson)
reports

Actual data for FY 19

Spectrum NG
reports and
Howard County
data

Spectrum reports
and marketing
expenditure data
tracked by staff
Clarabridge
surveys

Actual membership
data through April
30, 2019. Housing
data updated
annually by Howard
County.
Actual data as of April
30, 2019 (All quarters
restated to include
Haven on the Lake)
Responses during Q4
FY19

Clarabridge
surveys

Responses during Q4
FY19

Clarabridge
surveys

Responses during Q4
FY19

Clarabridge
surveys

Responses during Q4
FY19

Clarabridge
surveys

Responses during Q4
FY19

Clarabridge
surveys
Clarabridge
surveys
Clarabridge
surveys
Clarabridge
surveys
Clarabridge
surveys
Clarabridge
surveys

Responses during Q4
FY19
Responses during Q4
FY19
Responses during Q4
FY19
Responses during Q4
FY19
Responses during Q4
FY19
Responses during Q4
FY19

8

Market share for
memberships and
Columbia Cards

9

Marketing Cost per
Membership

To monitor marketing
effectiveness

10

Top 50 Associated
Words by Volume

11

Survey results for
various topics such
as cleanliness,
satisfaction with
staff, facilities,
classes, etc.
Summarized
Survey Results by
Survey Source
NEW - Effort

Indicates general
satisfaction/dissatisfaction of
program and facility users
Provides more specific feedback
from program and facility users to
drive improvements

12

13

Very high-level survey results by
the source of the survey, such as
the CA website, Facebook, etc.
Numerical value that indicates
survey responses as to “how hard
is it to do business with CA”
Numerical value that indicates
survey responses as to the
likelihood a customer will refer the
program to someone else –
overall CA.
See above – pools

14

Net Promoter
Score (“NPS”) –
Overall CA (Sport
& Fitness)

15

NPS – Pools

16

NPS – Fitness
Clubs
NPS – Golf

See above – fitness clubs

NPS – Haven on
the Lake
NPS - Tennis

See above – Haven on the Lake

17
18
19
20

Volume of Survey
Results by
Program or Facility

See above – golf courses

See above – indoor and outdoor
tennis
Provides more context for other
metrics by showing how many
surveys were received per
program

2

Dashboard - Metrics 1, 3-7
As of April 30, 2019 ($'000)
METRIC 1
Net Change in Past Due
Membership Accounts
over 90 Days

$150.0
$100.0
$50.0
$0.0
($50.0)
($100.0)

$124.2

$62.3

Q4 FY18*

($9.5)

Q1 FY19*

($49.6)

Q2 FY19*

($38.2)

Q3 FY19*

Q4 FY19*

*Excludes write-off of balances >120 days in Q4 FY18 and Q1-Q4 FY19

METRIC 3
130.0%

People Productivity
(personnel costs divided
by non-annual charge 100.0%
revenue)

105.7%

103.7%

97.0%

95.6%

89.6%

70.0%
Q4 FY18

Q1 FY 19

Q2 FY19

Q3 FY19

Q4 FY19

METRIC 4
Free Cash Flow
(cash flow from
operations less debt
repayments and capital
expenditures)

$4,000

$1,563

$1,476

$2,000
$0

($2,000)
($4,000)
($6,000)

($4,210)

($4,583)

($5,180)

($5,572)

($8,000)

($7,501)

($10,000)
2013

METRIC 5

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Audited - As of April 30, 2019

Net Assets to Debt
Service
(debt service equals
principal payments on
long-term debt plus
interest expense)
$99,206/$2,810
Actual 35.30

0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

Should be greater than 1.25 to 1.00 on an annual basis

35.00

40.00

Dashboard - Metrics 1, 3-7
As of April 30, 2019 ($'000)
METRIC 6

Audited - As of April 30, 2019

Total Liabilities to Total
Net Assets

$51,603/$99,206
0.00

0.20

0.40

0.60

0.80

1.00

1.20

1.40

Should be less than 1.30 to 1.00 on an annual basis

Actual .52

METRIC 7
300%

Depreciation and
Repairs & Maintenance 250%
Expense as a % of
200%
Revenue
150%
100%
50%

0%
Athl. Club

Col. Gym

SSC

FH

HG

FY16

Haven

FY17

FY18

Ice Rink

Long Reach
Tennis

Outdoor
Pools

Swim
Center

All S&F

FY19

$35

Depreciation and
Repairs & Maintenance
Expense per Square
Foot

$30

$25
$20
$15
$10

$5
$0
Athl. Club

Col. Gym

SSC
FY16

Haven
FY17

FY18

Ice Rink
FY19

Long Reach
Tennis

Swim Center

Dashboard - New Metric 1a
As of April 30, 2019 ($'000)
METRIC 1a
Membership A/R
Balance

$150

Q2 FY19

Q3 FY19

Q4 FY19
$93

$100

$65
$50

$53 $46

$42
$12

$5

$7

$11

$12

$30

$3

$0
# of Accts:

567

501

348

Total A/R

129

67

76

Over 60 Days

86

60

31

Over 90 Days

225

217

116

Write-offs

Note: Dollars in Thousands

Advertising Effectiveness Report FY18 & FY19
New Membership Acquisition
Goal: $150-$250 marketing cost per new membership
FY18 Q1

FY18 Q2

FY18 Q3

FY18 Q4

FY19 Q1

FY19 Q2

FY19 Q3

FY19 Q42

$174,094

$170,498

$177,881

$168,175

$115,181

$76,860

$76,848

$509,118

40,751

30,496

44,537

91,147

120,054

67,6824

67,345

143,400

Unique Form Submissions5

957

355

320

376

572

253

817

1108

New Memberships
CA Fit&Play

448

213

173

251

416

234

332

335

1,733
2,181

664
877

714
887

836
1,087

1,506
1,922

691
925

837
1,169

851
1186

100%

$80

$194

$201

$155

$60

$83

$66

$429

90%

$89

$216

$223

$172

$67

$92

$73

$477

80%

$100

$243

$251

$193

$75

$104

$82

$537

Investment 1
Total Page Views:
(Membership related)
3

Memberships beginning FY18

Other Memberships
Total New Memberships
6

Cost of New Membership
Acquisition

70%

$114

$278

$286

$221

$86

$119

$94

$613

60%

$133

$324

$334

$258

$100

$138

$110

$715

Average Cost of
New Membership
Acquisition

FY18

FY19

$161

$158

80%

$201

70%

$230

60%

$268

$226

100%
90%

$176

$198

$179

$265

1 Investment

was updated for FY18 and FY19 to include Haven membership advertising costs.
FY19 Q4, a media agency started working with us and our combined efforts caused the investment and page views to increase.
3 Total page views numbers were adjusted to include Haven.
4 Page views decline because CA team members are removed from counts.
5 Total form submissions were updated to include Haven’s submissions for FY18 and FY19.
6 Other membership numbers were updated to include Haven memberships and add-ons for FY18 and FY19.
2 In

Membership Market Share (CA residents only)
FY15-FY19 Q4

Fiscal Year

Columbia
Cards
A

Columbia
Resident
Membership
B

CA
Residential
Units
C

2015
2016
2017
2018
2019

1,903
2,590
3,336
3,745
4,159

13,169
13,021
12,743
12,253
11,791

35,439
36,171
36,401
36,401
37,006

Market Share

Market Share

(Including
Columbia Cards)

(Excluding
Columbia Cards)

D= (A+B)/C

E= B/C

42.5%
43.2%
44.2%
43.9%
43.1%

38.4%
37.4%
36.8%
33.7%
31.9%

1. “Columbia Resident Membership” (column B) assumes
only one membership per household.
2. Market share percentages use Columbia housing units as
the unit of measure, including housing units of employees.
This information is updated by the Howard County Department
of Planning and Zoning.
3. “Columbia Resident Membership” (column B) does not include
employee memberships.

Advertising Tactics
Tactics completed in FY19

Print /DM

- Membership direct mail pieces
- Open House print ads in Columbia Flier and Howard County Times
- Official Visitors/Residents Guide to Howard County

Email Broadcasts

- Purchased lists to specifically geo-targeted audiences

Social Media

- Paid advertising on Facebook, Twitter and Instagram

Online/Digital
-

Baltimore Sun/Explore Howard County digital ads (also includes ads for Open House and Columbia Athletic Club reopening events)
Baltimore Sun ad network digital ads
CountySportsZone website ads
Online Activities Guide
Entercom geo-targeted mobile campaigns
Pay-per-click ads (paid search)
Digital banner ads through QuantCast, MIQ, Division D, Pandora and Double-click.
Pandora also includes online recorded ads between songs.

CA Operational Dashboard - Board v1
EXPORTED BY: Dan Burns

EXPORTED ON: 07/02/2019 10:40 AM UTC-04:00

SOURCE ID: ALL DATE RANGE: 02/01/2019 1:00 AM - 04/30/2019 11:59 PM (UTC-04:00)

Top 50 Associated Words by Volume

07/02/2019 10:40 AM

Attribute Name

Average … Volume

Volume %

Sentiment

USE->GYM

STAFF->GREAT

OFFER->CLASS

GYM->WOMEN
CLUB->ATHLETICSTAFF->HELPFUL
FACILITY->GREAT

FACILITY->CLEAN

MEMBER->CA

PIECE->EQUIPMENT
USE->FACILITY

Metric : CA Overall NPS

CLUB->SUPREME SPORT
FACILITY->NICE

Current Period:
50.0

0.50

40.0

0.27

▲12.2

30.0

▲0.18

0.30

Previous period:

20.0

Previous period:

0.20

CAR: Staff Satisfaction(15721)

93.49

1841

98.55

0.5 

CAR: Facilities Cleanliness(15252)

90.41

1807

96.73

0.5 

CAR: Facilities Quality(11511)

89.62

1818

97.32

0.5 

CAR: Columbia Association Satisfaction(… 89.53

1784

95.5

0.5 

CAR: Programs/Classes Satisfaction(157… 88.4

1327

71.04

0.58 

10.0

0.10

CAR: Likely to Recommend

1840

98.5

0.51 

0.0

0.00

8.22

29.0

0.40

0.09

n= 1,868

EFFORT

FITNESS CENTER
NPS

Metric : Effort

Fitness Center NPS

Current Period:

-1.54

-1.00

43

▼-0.16

-2.00

Previous quarter:

-3.00

-1.38

Tennis NPS

40

44

▲20

30

Previous period:

20

23

n= 1,868

TENNIS NPS

Current Period:
50

Current Period:
50

50

40

33

▲20

30

▼-10

30

Previous period:

20

Previous period:

20

24

40

43

-4.00

10

10

10

-5.00

0

0

0

n= 1,868

Aquatics NPS

n= 1,343

Haven on the Lake
NPS

Aquatics NPS

Haven on the Lake NPS

Current Period:

36

GOLF NPS

Golf NPS

Current Period:
0.00

Current Period:
50

50

40

35

▲1

30

▼-2

30

Previous period:

20

Previous period:

20

36

40

37
10

10

0

0

n= 102

n= 152

EXPENSIVE->TOO

CLASS->FITNESS

Metric : CA Overall Sentiment

Current Period:

41.2

ROOM->STEAM

RECOMMEND->FRIEND

GYM->COLUMBIANICE->VERY

CENTER->SWIM
COLD->TOO

ROOM->WEIGHT
FRIENDLY->VERY
GOOD->VERY

CLASS->YOGA

ROOM->MEN

PUMP->BODY

ROOM->LOCKER

ROOM->WOMEN

STAFF->FRIENDLY

LOVE->CLASS

Sentiment Breakdown

USE->POOL

VARIETY->CLASS

AREA->POOL

NEED->ROOM

ENJOY->CLASS

ENJOY->REALLY

MAKE->SURE
PLACE->GREAT

07/02/2019 10:40 AM
TIME->EVERY
KEEP->CLEAN

LOVE->GYM
TRAINER->PERSONAL
TAKE->CLASS

LOOK->FORWARD

Survey Metrics

HAPPY->VERY
CLASS->GREAT
ASSOCIATION->COLUMBIA
PLEASE->VERY

STAFF->NICE

n= 97

n= 121

CA Operational Dashboard - Board v1
EXPORTED BY: Dan Burns

EXPORTED ON: 07/02/2019 10:40 AM UTC-04:00

SOURCE ID: ALL DATE RANGE: 02/01/2019 1:00 AM - 04/30/2019 11:59 PM (UTC-04:00)

Volume by Region

07/02/2019 10:40 AM

1,500
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Quarter over Quarter Takeaways:
NPS: With the completion of the Athletic Club and no other renovation disruptions during the quarter, the overall CA NPS increased dramatically (29.0 to 41.2).
NPS: 41.2 represents the largest overall CA NPS score to date.
NPS: The largest increases in NPS were seen in the Fitness Centers and Golf. Both saw a 20 point increase.
NPS: Tennis saw a decrease in NPS as comparisons between the Athletic Club courts and Long Reach continue (43 to 33)
Effort: Overall Effort increased (viewed as harder) as compared to the previous quarter (-1.38 to -1.54). The increase in effort mainly revolved around class (group, fitness, tennis) instructors and times.
Sentiment: Sentiment improvements (.09 to .27) were driven by staff and look and feel
Age: NPS and volume of responses rose as age group increases
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DRAFT
Minutes of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Held: June 27, 2019
To be approved July 25, 2019
A meeting of the Columbia Association Board of Directors was held on Thursday, June 27, 2019, at
Columbia Association headquarters. Present were Chairman Andy Stack and members Dick Boulton,
Renee DuBois, Lin Eagan, Janet Evans, Alan Klein, Milton W. Matthews, Nancy McCord, Rafia
Siddiqui, and Virginia Thomas. Also present were CA Vice President/CFO Susan Krabbe and General
Counsel Sheri Fanaroff.
1. Call to Order: The Board of Directors Meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by Chairman Andrew
Stack. Mr. Stack announced the directors in attendance and reminded attendees that the meeting was
being live-streamed and recorded.
2. Announcement of Closed/Special Meetings Held/To Be Held:
a) The Board of Directors held a closed meeting on May 6, 2019. Members present were Dick
Boulton, Renee Dubois, Lin Eagan, Janet Evans, Alan Klein, Nancy McCord, Gregg Schwind, Andy
Stack, Shari Zaret and Milton Matthews. The vote to close was 8-0-0. The closed meeting was
authorized under the Maryland Homeowners Act, Md. Code, Real Property §11B-11(4)(i) discussion
of matters pertaining to employees and personnel; (iii) consultation with legal counsel on legal
matters and (iii) consultation with legal counsel on legal matters.
b) The Architectural Resource Committee held a closed meeting on May 13, 2019. Members present
were Sheri Fanaroff, Deb Bach, Carl McKinney; Others present were Laura Parrish, Ed Lambright,
Debbie Nix, Susan Sloan, Lisa Colavita and Karina Caico. The vote to close was 3-0-0. The closed
meeting was authorized under the Maryland Homeowners Act, Md. Code, Real Property §11B11(4)(iv) consultation with staff personnel, consultants, attorney, or other persons in connection with
pending or potential litigation.
c) The Audit Committee held a closed meeting on June 10, 2019. Members present were Renee
Dubois, Rafia Siddiqui, Timothy Redmond and James Young. The vote to close was 4-0-0. The
closed meeting was authorized under the Maryland Homeowners Act, Md. Code, Real Property
§11B-11(4)(i) discussion of matters pertaining to employees and personnel; (iv) consultation with
staff personnel, consultants, attorney, or other persons in connection with pending or potential
litigation.
2. Approval of Agenda
Action: Ms. McCord moved to approve the agenda as amended. Ms. Eagan seconded the motion,
which passed unanimously.
4. Disclosure of Conflict of Interest: none

1

47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97

5. Resident Speakout:
(a) Joan Aron, Oakland Mills, spoke in opposition to changing CA from a Homeowners Association to
a Community Benefit Association.
(b) Russ Swatek, Long Reach, spoke in opposition to changing CA from a Homeowners Association to
a Community Benefit Association and voiced his preference for what the Board should focus on.
(c) Liz Schoen, Wilde Lake, spoke in opposition to changing CA from a Homeowners Association to a
Community Benefit Association
(d) Bill McCormack, Jr, Oakland Mills, encouraged CA to explore all options for changing the legal
structure of CA before any decisions are made.
(e) Chris Alleva, Hickory Ridge, spoke regarding issue of standing in zoning cases in Howard County
and Howard County Bill 33 and zoning issues in Columbia
(f) Barbara Russell, Hickory Ridge, spoke in opposition to changing CA from a Homeowners
Association to a Community Benefit Association.
(g) Alex Hekimian, Oakland Mills, spoke in opposition to changing CA from a Homeowners
Association to a Community Benefit Association.
(h) Rebecca Palmquist, Wilde Lake, spoke regarding the use of the Neighbor Centers by Co-op
Nursery Programs.
(i) Ginger Scott, Wilde Lake, spoke in opposition to changing CA from a Homeowners Association to
a Community Benefit Association.
(j) Cynthia Coyle, Harpers Choice, spoke in opposition to changing CA from a Homeowners
Association to a Community Benefit Association.
(k) Dianne Beil, Oakland Mills, spoke in opposition to changing CA from Homeowners Association to
Community Benefit Association
(l) Jervis Dorton, Oakland Mills, spoke in opposition to changing CA from a Homeowners Association
to a Community Benefit Association and on New Town Zoning
(m) Joel Broida, Town Center, spoke in opposition to changing CA from a Homeowners Association to
a Community Benefit Association
(n) Jill Crane, Oakland Mills, spoke regarding the proposed strategic initiatives by the Board.
6. Board Action
(a) Consent Agenda:
1. Approval of Minutes May 9, 2019 and May 23, 2019 – Minutes of the May 9 and
May 23, 2019 meetings were approved.
2. Budget Schedule for FY 2021/FY 2022 – The FY 2021/FY 2022 Budget schedule was
approved.
3. Easement Requests – The following easement requests were approved:
a. Residences at Roslyn Rise Mixed Income Housing
b. Horse Center Public Utility Easement
4. Stakeholders Dinners – November and December 2019 – The Board agreed on the groups to
invite to the November and December 2019 stakeholders dinners. The Ad Hoc Working Group
will make suggestions regarding invitees for the remaining dinners.
(b) Board Votes:
1. Goal & Objectives for Leadership Development (a Strategic Priority of the CA Strategic
Plan for FY 2020-2024) –
Action: Ms. DuBois moved to approve the Columbia Association 2019 5-year Strategic Plan for
FY2020-2024 as presented. Ms. Thomas seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
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2. CA Board work Plan/Strategic Initiatives for FY2020:
Laurie Rueben presented a summary of the topics being considered for the CA Board Work Plan.
Laurie advised from the google doc that she created indicated that the top 3 were 6 (Implications
of the lien cases), 8 (Village/CA/Staff Relationships) and 10 (Facilities – limited list), and
possibly including #3 Master Plan for Columbia Community – including New Town Center.
Mr. Stack requested input from the Board Members on the various topics.
Action: Mr. Klein moved to include the following topics in the CA Board Work Plan/Strategic
Initiatives for FY 2020 1. Implications of the lien cases; 2. Village/CA/Staff Relationships); 3
Facilities; and 4. Master Plan for Columbia Community – including New Town Center. Ms.
Dubois seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.
(c) Board Discussion –
1. Five-Year capital improvement. Dennis Mattey gave a presentation of the Five-Year Capital
Improvement Plan and provided a PowerPoint presentation.
2. Ten Year Financial Plan. Susan Krabbe and Lynn Schwartz presented the Ten-Year
Financial Projections for Columbia Association. Ms. Krabbe reviewed the ten-year projection
and answered questions from the Board members.
3. Neighborhood Centers – Presentation only. Dennis Mattey gave a presentation on the 14
neighborhood centers, including usage data, actual income and expense numbers, estimated
construction costs for steady state operations, estimated construction cost for renovations
necessary to comply with current ADA and life safety codes as well as the estimated remaining
useful building life.
The Board agreed it would like additional data from each village. Board members are asked to
send Janet Evans a list of the information each member would like to have. Ms. Evans will
consolidate the list, which each Board member to their respective village. Board members should
inform their village why the information is needed. It was requested that the information be
obtained by August 10, 2019.
7. Chairman’s Remarks: No additional comments.
8. President’s Report: No additional comments
9. Tracking Forms
(a) Tracking Form for Board Requests
(b) Tracking Form for Resident Requests
10. Proposed New Topics - None
11. Talking Points: The talking points were ready by Recording Secretary Alison Mathieson
12. Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 10:45 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,
Alison Mathieson
Recording Secretary
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July 3, 2019
To:

Members of the Columbia Association Board of Directors
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

From:

Susan Krabbe, Vice President and CFO

Cc:

Lynn Schwartz, Director of Finance/Treasurer
Members of the Senior Leadership Team

Subject:

Proposed Operating and Capital Budget Parameters for FY 21 and FY 22

A critical component in the Columbia Association (CA) budget process is the approval by the CA
Board of the operating and capital parameters. The capital parameter is the total amount of the
capital budget for a fiscal year. The operating parameter is the target for annual increases in net
assets (the annual excess of revenues over expenses) for each fiscal year. These parameters
will be used to develop the proposed FY 21 and conditional FY 22 budgets, along with input
from the Board, community stakeholders and staff throughout the budget process. The budget
process, which extends from July 2019 to February 2020, provides numerous opportunities for
Board and community input and review.
Operating Parameters
The pre-audit results for FY 19 indicate an increase in net assets of $3,858,000 as compared to
the FY 19 budget of $3,818,000. The FY 20 budget projects an increase in net assets of $3.8
million, and we are already aware of pressures on achieving that amount (e.g. projects
budgeted for FY 19 that did not get completed until FY 20). We are making decisions now to
hold off on filling vacant positions, delaying consulting activities, etc. to make sure that we can
achieve the budgeted increase in net assets for FY 20.
Therefore, based on analysis of trends and future indicators, we recommend operating
parameters (increase in net assets) for each fiscal year (FY 21 and FY 22) of at least $3
million. Annual increases in net assets during the two fiscal years of at least $3 million appear
to be achievable, given the expense trends in existing programs and services, and the amount
should be adequate for unforeseen expenditures in either one of the fiscal years.
Our recommendation was analyzed carefully in the context of the actual financial results for FY
19 and prior fiscal years. Additionally, we reviewed projected capital spending, economic
factors, interest rates, and other potential increases for both revenue and expenses for the two
years. The recommended $3 million target for the increase in net assets also takes into
consideration the proposed capital budgets for FY 21 and FY 22 (please see below), as
reflected through the impact of the capital budget on depreciation, interest, loss on disposals
and other operating expenses.
Even though CA is a non-profit corporation, it is still very important to continue to grow the value
of the organization through annual increases in net assets. First and foremost, annual increases
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in net assets generate cash that is necessary for paying CA’s operational bills, funding required
debt service and making capital investments in CA facilities and amenities. Second, the trend of
growth in net assets is watched closely by CA’s current lenders and credit rating agency, as well
as prospective lenders when CA is in the market to issue debt. Analysts from our current
lenders question in detail year to year declines in the annual increase in net assets.
Consequently, maintaining a stable, consistent annual increase in net assets should be a
priority for the organization.
Capital Parameters
Based on review of the projected capital needs and funding capacity, we recommend the
following capital budget parameters:
Capital Expenditures – FY 21
Capital Expenditures – FY 22

$15,000,000
$15,000,000

While these amounts do not fully fund the Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for the two fiscal
years, the respective capital budgets will continue to exceed the previous 10-year average of
$14.4 million; thereby, continuing to focus on CA’s aging infrastructure and managing
organizational commitments, such as the ongoing work on the Supreme Sports Club, planned
renovations for Columbia Gym and needed improvements in the open space and CA’s
community buildings. We do believe that some capital projects in the CIP will need to be
deferred and perhaps set aside entirely, which the Board will determine in its deliberations.
Reviewing projects in the CIP for FY 21, the FY 21 parameter considers completion of the
renovations at Supreme Sports Club, Lake Kittamaqundi dredging and other watershed projects
and another ADA wading pool. The FY 22 parameter includes major improvements at Columbia
Gym and the Art Center and renovations at several other community buildings, as well as work
on the first of the three overpasses and significant investments in watershed, dredging and pond
projects.
10-Year
($ in 000's)

2020

Capital budget

$20,000

2019
$20,000

2018
$17,000

2017
$21,000

2016
$9,900

2015
$12,810

2014
$13,416

2013
$9,164

2012

2011

$9,933 $10,476

Average
$14,370

Inflation and Interest Rates
The Board is also asked to approve the interest rate and inflation rate thresholds for the FY 22
budget. In February 2021, if there is a difference for either of these economic factors of one
percent or more between the nationally published rates and the rates noted below, the staff will
revise the FY 22 budget without further approval by the Board of Directors.
We researched inflation and interest projections and developed the following proposed rates:
Thresholds for the FY 22 Budget:
Inflation Rate Threshold:
Interest Rate Threshold

3.0%
4.5%

In May 2021, we will issue a summary of all FY 22 budget changes approved by the Board, and
changes to the inflation and interest rates, if such changes are made.
Thank you for your leadership in the budget process.
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July 3, 2019

To:

Members of the Columbia Association Board of Directors
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

From:

Susan Krabbe, Vice President and CFO

Cc:

Lynn Schwartz, Director of Finance/Treasurer
Members of the Senior Leadership Team

Subject:

Proposed Annual Charge Rate and Cap for FY 21 and FY 22

Background
The annual charge applies equally to residential and commercial properties within the boundaries of
Columbia Association (CA), and is currently $0.68 per $100 of assessed valuation, subject to a threeyear phase-in and 3.5 percent cap on annual assessed valuation increases. The maximum allowable
rate is $0.75, and the mandated cap is 10 percent.
CA has reduced the rate twice: from $0.75 to $0.73 in 1992 and from $0.73 to $0.68 in 2003. CA has
also reduced the cap multiple times since it was mandated in 2003; most recently to 2.5 percent in
2009. CA increased the cap to 3.5 percent from 2.5 percent in 2017 at the Board’s initiative to provide
additional financial resources for capital projects to address CA’s aging infrastructure, resulting in an
additional $220,000 in annual charge revenue for FY 17. Even with that change, the combination of the
cap being below the permitted maximum (10 percent) and the rate also at less than the maximum
means that CA still could generate approximately at least $7 million in additional annual charge
revenue.
CA’s actions are in strong contrast to Howard County’s approach to the real property tax. Howard
County’s cap of 5 percent has not changed since Columbia was founded in 1967. While its rate has
both increased and decreased over the past 52 years, the rate has not changed since 2002, when it
was changed as a result of a legislated change in methodology.
Annual charge revenue accounts for approximately 54 percent of CA’s total revenue. The greatest use
of annual charge revenue is for open space maintenance, such as lake and pond dredging and
maintenance; tot lot, plaza, pathway and bridge maintenance; and open space mowing, plantings and
snow renewal. Additionally, annual charge revenue supports the village community associations;
supports operations of most of our aquatics facilities – outdoor pools and Swim Center; and funds no
charge community events, such as the Lakefront festivals, international and cultural activities, the
Volunteer Center, the Columbia Community Exchange, and others. . The annual charge also
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contributes to the CA Points program, income-qualified discounts and resident pricing for recreational
facilities and programs.
From 2009 when the cap was lowered to 2.5 percent through 2019 (cap was increased to 3.5 percent
for 2017), annual charge revenue increased an average of 3 percent per year. This trend reflects the
increase in the cap in 2017 and new construction within the boundaries of CA. During this 11-year
period, residents have consistently expressed their desire for new services and programs, as
evidenced by requests for new parks, enhanced aquatics venues, and improvements to open space,
recreational and fitness facilities, etc. Plus, aging capital assets continue to drive significant increases
in maintenance and repair costs.
Budget Considerations
The budget implications of the annual charge are significant, as it is more than half the annual revenue
for the organization. Changing the rate by one cent, either up or down, would result in a total difference
of approximately $595,000. The impact on the average residential property is about $15 per year.
The annual charge applies to commercial properties exactly as it applies to residential properties.
Therefore, for example, a one-cent increase or a one-cent decrease in the rate would impact the owner
of The Mall in Columbia by a corresponding increase or decrease in its annual charge bill by
approximately $12,600.
Recommendations
Staff recommends that the Board keep the annual charge rate at $0.68 and the cap at 3.5 percent for
the FY 21 budget. At the current rate and cap, CA continues to deliver value to residential and
commercial property owners within the boundaries of CA, and provides significant favorable economic
impact to this region that far exceeds the value of a one-cent reduction in the rate or a lowering of the
cap back to 2.5 percent.
The FY 19 average annual charge amount for residential properties is $1,011. A one-cent rate
reduction represents a 1.5 percent decrease in each property owner’s annual charge bill, with an
average impact of about $15 for the year, or about four cents a day.
Staff does not believe that presently the need exist or that a strong and credible message can be
communicated to the community for an increase in the annual charge, given property values and the
impact of downtown redevelopment on the community. Consequently, staff believes that such an
increase would be detrimental to the organization’s reputation in the community to an extent that would
outweigh the benefit of the additional revenue.
The Board’s options are to increase the annual charge rate and/or cap; to decrease either or both; or to
keep them unchanged.

2

Attachment 1

COLUMBIA ASSOCIATION
ANNUAL CHARGE ANALYSIS
June 21, 2019

FY 19 Annual
Charge

Annual
Impact of a
$0.01
Change in
the Rate

$390,700
$364,700
$230,896
$285,625
$452,300
$250,460
$288,210
$321,500
$277,400
$379,001
$297,256

$1,328
$1,240
$785
$971
$1,538
$852
$980
$1,093
$943
$1,289
$1,011

$20
$18
$12
$14
$23
$13
$14
$16
$14
$19
$15

$0
$0
$8
$9
$12
$8
$9
$0
$0
$12

HRD Properties

$260,247,964

$884,843

$13,012

$6,089

General Growth Properties

$251,806,133

$856,141

$12,590

$8,252

$40,457,804

$594,968

$253,163

Sample Properties
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
Average Residential Property

Total for Columbia Association

Billable
Valuation

$11,899,353,754

First Year
Impact of
Reducing the
Cap to 2.5%

Notes:
1. The CA Board members' residential properties were used as a sample representing one from
each village. This also provides transparency regarding the impact of any Board decision on the
annual charge rate. The average impact on the 10 Board members' properties is about $16,
slightly higher than the overall average.
2. The impact of a one-cent increase in the rate over the 27,000 residential properties would be
only $15 per year, but would provide $595,000 in total that could be used by CA in other areas
of need.

3. The 2.5 percent cap applies to six of the ten sample properties shown above.
4. A sample of commercial properties was included to show the impact of a one-cent change
on those as well.
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July 5, 2019

To:

Columbia Association Board of Directors
Milton W. Matthews, President/CEO

From: Susan Krabbe, Vice President and CFO
Cc:

Dan Burns, Director of Sport and Fitness
Lynn Schwartz, Director of Finance/Treasurer
Laura Sitler, Chief Marketing Officer

Re:

CA Board Membership Pricing Guidance for the FY 21 and Conditional FY 22 Budgets

As part of the foundation for the FY 21 and FY 22 operating and capital budgets, the CA Board
of Directors approves the annual charge rate and cap, which is projected to contribute just over
54% of CA’s FY 20 budgeted revenue of $77.1 million. The CA Board also will provide guidance
to staff for membership pricing. Membership revenue is projected to contribute 26%
(approximately $19.9 million) of CA’s FY 20 budgeted revenue. Membership revenue has
consistently contributed about 26% of revenues since at least FY 13.
For many years, CA staff has worked to orient pricing for memberships and other programs and
activities to minimize the use of annual charge revenue for services that may be able to fund
themselves. The message conveyed by previous Boards is that what can pay for itself at
maturity through its own users should pay for itself, and that the annual charge be reserved to
subsidize or fully fund those activities and amenities that are either enjoyed by all (such as open
space) or support CA’s community mission (such as income-qualified pricing, village community
associations, the arts, lakefront music and movies, etc.). For context, the impact of CA’s
income-qualified pricing is significant in that 50% discounts on memberships are extended to
those residents earning below 110% of the federal income guidelines based on family size. As
of April 30, 2019, 1,410 households within the boundaries of CA accessed CA memberships
through this program. The total estimated FY 19 discount for these resident memberships is
approximately $691,000.
Leadership in Sport and Fitness has focused on minimizing the department’s reliance on annual
charge revenue, and has achieved the membership revenue contribution to Sport and Fitness
operating expenses indicated on EXHIBIT A. Our ongoing focus to rely less on the annual
1

charge for Sport and Fitness expenses is directly impacted by such factors as increases in the
minimum wage, increases in depreciation and interest expense, reflecting the significant capital
investment in Sport and Fitness facilities (e.g., major renovations at the Athletic Club and Swim
Center, the replacement of SplashDown, the new Long Reach Tennis Club, etc.)
In developing rates, staff considers multiple factors including CA’s own operating and capital
trends, competitor pricing, sales feedback, survey data and increased current and future
requirements. Based on these factors, staff recommends an increase of 2.5 - 3% for residents,
depending on the type of membership, and up to a market-competitive increase for non-resident
memberships, particularly the Play membership. The recommended increases are consistent
with Board-approved policy from 2011 that was also applied in the membership restructuring
project in 2016 (see Attachment 1).
The Ten-Year Financial Projection shared with the Board on June 27, 2019 reflects a minimal
2% increase in average membership pricing for the ten-year period, and still requires a one-cent
increase in the annual charge rate in FY 26. The FY 21 membership projection also includes 5%
growth in membership sales and 3% growth in the total number of memberships after attrition
over the FY 20 budget.
Using the FY 20 approved budget as a base, EXHIBIT B indicates the incremental membership
revenue that would be generated at three different possible percentage increase levels in rates.
It also shows the important cumulative effect over 5 years at each level of increase. Revenue
lost as a result of not increasing membership rates (barring a change in member behavior
through increased sales or decreased attrition) is lost in perpetuity. Lost revenue would need to
be offset by increased membership sales, increases in other income categories or decreases in
expenses including depreciation, resulting in less capital investment. EXHIBIT B shows a few
examples of what would be required...and when.
Our assessment of operational trends included a review of financially related factors that impact
sales and attrition. This included member reported reasons for cancellation, Clarabridge surveys
of existing members and actual sales performance for new members. All of these factors
indicate that while people would enjoy lower membership rates, pricing has not had a significant
impact on the membership decisions of our current or potential members. To the contrary, we
have seen increased performance metrics directly correlated to increasing the value of CA’s
memberships through new facilities, renovations, improved programming and service, all areas
in which CA has invested significantly over the past four years.
● Reasons for cancellation as reported by members
○ FY18 reasons
■ Financial 5.25%
■ Too Expensive/Price 5.18%
○ FY19 reasons
■ Financial 4.08%
■ Too Expensive/Price 3.11%
● Clarabridge Feedback
2

○

○

○

FY17 surveys
■ General Pricing 14.09% of conversation
■ Fitness Center Fees and Pricing 10.28% of conversation
FY18 surveys
■ General Pricing 11.28%
■ Fitness Center Fees and Pricing 7.11%
FY19 Surveys
■ General Pricing 11.71%
■ Fitness Center Fees and Pricing 7.45%

Sales Performance
● Significant increase higher value memberships FY18 versus FY19
○ 232 - sale increase (21.3%) in F&P
○ 365 - sale increase (25.7%) in 1Fit
○ 363 - sale decrease (-22.5%) in Play (weather?)
●

May/June FY20 versus May/June FY19
○ 94 - sale increase (34.6%) in F&P
○ 57 - sale increase (25.1%) in 1Fit
○ 42 - sale increase (6.23%) in Play

Staff Recommendations
The staff presents the following alternatives for Board consideration and, ultimately, the
approval of one or the other of these options.
1. As noted above, staff recommends an increase of 2.5 - 3% depending on the type of
membership for residents and up to a market-competitive increase for non-resident
memberships.
2. An alternative approach that staff believes would help the organization and the Board to
advance CA through policy direction would be to base the Board’s membership
guidance on a threshold at a more strategic level. To this end, staff recommends that the
Board require a minimum contribution from membership revenue of 64% of Sport and
Fitness operating expenses, before allocations, for the FY 21 and conditional FY 22
budgets. Then staff would balance revenue and expense changes to achieve that
requirement.
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Exhibit A - Membership Revenue Contribution to Sport and Fitness Expenses
Dollars in 000’s
Total Membership
Revenue

FY 17
Actual

FY 18
Actual

FY 19
Pre Audit

$18,210

$18,484

$18,928

$19,916

$20,756

$21,729

1.5%

2.4%

5.2%

4.2%

4.7%

$27,240

$29,239

$31,214

$32,427

$33,686

2.3%

6.6%

6.8%

3.9%

3.9%

67%

65%

64%

64%

65%

(0.7%)

(4.0%)

(1.4%)

0.3%

0.8%

$5,405

$6,158

$6,966

$7,020

$7,177

8.9%

13.9%

13.1%

0.8%

2.2%

Increase (Decrease)
Total Operating
Expenses (excluding
department
allocations)

$26,811

Increase (Decrease)
Membership Revenue
- funding of operating
expenses

68%

Increase (Decrease)
Depreciation and
Interest
Increase (Decrease)

$4,963

FY 20
FY 21
Budget Projection

FY 22
Projection

Exhibit B - What If?
3%

2.5%

2%

$611,000

$510,000

$408,000

$3.1 million

$2.6 million

$2.1 million

Additional New Sales
at May 1 in lieu of
increase

615

513

411

Additional New Sales
at June 1 in lieu of
increase

671

560

448

+ $.01
$ .69

+ $.008
$ .688

+$.007
$ .687

FY 21 Revenue
Increase
5 Year Cumulative
Increase

Annual Charge
increase in lieu of
increase

4

Attachment 1

Membership Pricing Philosophy
(Last reviewed by the CA Board in May 2016)

1. The goal of resident membership rates is to maximize participation while generating a
revenue stream to meet CA’s financial goals.
2. The goal of non-resident membership rates is, at a minimum, to match the market for
comparative services and programs. (An exception to this is in the rare instances where
a specific facility has limited capacity. In this case, non-resident rates are raised above
the market to manage the number of non-resident memberships.)
3. Resident membership rates are significantly discounted in acknowledgement that
residents pay an annual charge to CA.
4. In an effort to make Sport & Fitness memberships affordable to all residents, additional
discounts on the resident membership rates are available for CA residents who are
income-qualified.
5. Our goal is to make the composite rates less than the sum of the standalone
memberships. (We offer these rates as incentives for individuals to choose the
membership that encourages them to participate in all of the Sport & Fitness programs,
services and facilities.)
6. There is no double discounting.
7. Adding value and services will increase both market share and revenue.

5

Columbia
Development Tracker
July 3, 2019

The Columbia Development Tracker incorporates projects or development
proposals going through their entitlement and/or planning review process. The
tracker is composed of four separate sections, which are listed below in order of
appearance:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Upcoming development related public meetings
Previous development related public meetings and decisions
Newly submitted development plans
Previously submitted development proposals and decisions/status

This monthly report is produced by CA’s Office of Planning and Community Affairs with information
compiled from Howard County Government
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Upcoming Development Public Meetings
Project

Village

FDP-158-A
Kings
The amount of credited and uncredited
Contrivance
open space on FDP 158 is being amended to
reflect a proposed expansion in the square
footage of Hammond High School and
increase in parking area including
reconfiguration of the existing bus driveway
loop.

Meeting Date, Time, and
Location
7/11/2019
7:00 pm

Meeting Type

Stage in the
Development
Review Process

Planning Board Final Approval
– Decision
Making meeting

No action recommended.
The requirement for a
minimum of 36% open
space uses in the New
Town district is
maintained and the
percentage of credited
versus uncredited open
space associated with
this change is minimal
and appropriate.

Pre-submission
Community
Meeting

No action recommended.
The use is appropriate
given development in the
area and its location
fronting a minor arterial
roadway. Sufficient open
space buffer exists
between the subject
property and
neighboring New Town
zoned single-family
home neighborhoods.

3430 Court House Dr.
Ellicott City, MD 21043

The changes will result in a reduction of
credited open space by 2.3508 acres from
29.83 to 27.4792 within the FDP area.
Muslim Family Center
Near
This project would convert a residential
Long Reach
building, located at 5796 Waterloo Road, to
a religious facility. The building fronts on
Waterloo Road, near its intersection with
Snowden River Parkway. It is adjacent to a
neighboring single family home and a senior
living facility. The property consists of 1.11
acres and the proposed project is an
allowable conditional use in the R-20 zone.
Conditional use approval by the Hearing
Examiner is required.

7/15/2019
6:00 pm
Howard Central Branch
Library Warfield Room
10375 Little Patuxent
Parkway

CA Staff
Recommendation

Community
meeting prior to
submission of
development
plans
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Upcoming Development Public Meetings
Project

Village

Dorsey Overlook
Near
The proposed development is for 120 ageDorsey’s
restricted apartments located in five, fiveSearch
story buildings with each building including
parking on the first floor. The property is
located on 4.5 acres of land located at the
NE quadrant of the intersection of Route
108 and Columbia Rd. The property is zoned
R-Apt and, as proposed, will require a
conditional use approval for age restricted
housing which allows for the greater
density.
BA 19-006V - Fort Knox Columbia Self
Storage
Request for a commercial variance to
reduce the 30' parking setback to 2' in order
to accommodate an off-street parking area
at 9597 Berger Road.

Meeting Date, Time, and
Location
7/16/2019
6:00 pm

Meeting Type
Pre-submission
Community
Meeting

Linden Hall
4765 Dorsey Hall Drive
Ellicott City MD 21042

Columbia
7/22/2019
Non-village,
5:00 pm
Guilford
Industrial Park 3430 Court House Dr.
Ellicott City, MD 21043

Stage in the
Development
Review Process
Community
meeting prior to
submission of
development
plans

CA Staff
Recommendation
The proposed use is
consistent with R-Apt
zoning and will be
evaluated as to whether
the amenities and site
plan meet the
conditional use criteria.
CA Planning Staff is
monitoring this project.

Hearing
Examiner

If approved the
More information is
applicant may
pending on this case.
proceed subject
to any conditions.
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Upcoming Development Public Meetings
Project

Village

Meeting Date, Time, and
Location

ZB-1119M
Hickory Ridge 7/24/2019
HRVC Limited Partnership, C/O Kimco Realty
6:30 pm
Corp
3430 Court House Dr.
The applicant has submitted a request to
Ellicott City, MD 21043
amend the Preliminary Development Plan
for Columbia’s New Town District for the
purpose of redeveloping the Hickory Ridge
Village Center.

Meeting Type
Zoning Board

Stage in the
Development
Review Process
Final public
meeting and
decision

CA Staff
Recommendation
No action at this time.
CA planning staff will
closely monitor this case
and review the project in
order to provide a more
detailed
recommendation.

The Planning Board previously voted to
recommend approval of the PDP
amendment.
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Previous Development Related Meetings and Decisions
Project

Village

BA-18-005S
Near
Double Tree Sign Variance
Oakland Mills
RLJ Lodging Trust has submitted a
variance petition to move the
existing sign out of the easement
area and closer to Twin Knolls
Road for Vehicular visibility for
Doubletree by Hilton for a
property located at 5485 Twin
Knolls Road.
BA-747D, Brian England, t/a
British American Building, LLC
Appeal of Planning Board decision
by letter dated 9/29/17 denying
an amendment to FDP 55 that
clarifies the ancillary and
compatible gas station use to
comport with the approved
Master Comprehensive Final
Development Plan (Dismissed by
the HE on 10/30/18)

Stage in the
Development
Review Process

CA Staff
Recommendation

Meeting Date, Time,
and Location

Meeting Type

6/7/2019
9:30 am

Hearing
Examiner

Granted on
6/7/2019

Decisions of the
Hearing Examiner
may be appealed to
the Board of
Appeals.

No action
recommended.
Impact of sign
relocation is
minimal.

Board of
Appeals

The Board of
Appeals dismissed
this case for lack of
standing.

Final Appeal

No action
recommended

Decision

3430 Court House Dr
Ellicott City, MD
21043

Columbia
6/13/2019
Non-village,
6:30 pm
Guilford
Industrial Park 3430 Court House Dr
Ellicott City, MD
21043
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Previous Development Related Meetings and Decisions
Project






Village

Meeting Date, Time,
and Location

BA-19-007C, St. Louis Roman
Near
Catholic Congregation, Inc.
River Hill
Enlargement of a Conditional Use
site - addition of a bell Tower and
improvement to entrance of
existing sanctuary
(12500 Clarksville Pike,
Clarksville)

6/14/2019
9:30 am

ZRA 187, CB 31-2019
A zoning regulation amendment
to amend Sec. 131.0.N.1.a. to
require age-restricted
conditional use developments
that result in increased density
when compared to their nonconditional use zoning district
density to have frontage on and
direct access to a collector or
arterial road designated in the
General Plan.

6/17/2019
7:00 pm

Howard
County wide

3430 Court House Dr
Ellicott City, MD
21043

3430 Court House Dr.
Ellicott City, MD
21043

Meeting Type

Decision

Stage in the
Development
Review Process

CA Staff
Recommendation

Hearing
Examiner Conditional
Use Case

Granted with
general conditions
that the approval is
only for the project
as presented and
must comply with
applicable laws.

Decisions of the
Hearing Examiner
may be appealed to
the Board of
Appeals.

No action
recommended –
project request will
not substantially
alter current
function or impacts
of the property’s
existing use.

Zoning Board

No decision made.

Public Hearing. No
vote was taken on
the regulation and
it will be voted on
at an upcoming
meeting.

CA planning staff
has reviewed the
legislation and finds
that the ZRA would
be beneficial to the
community and
ensures that high
density
development
occurs in
appropriate
locations
throughout
Columbia.

Since the original
filing, one
amendment was
introduced that
would alter the
legislation “to allow
Age-Restricted Adult
Housing as a
Conditional Use in
the Rural
Conservation (RC)
and Rural
Residential (RR)
zoning districts” and
associated updates
throughout the
regulatory
requirements.
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Previous Development Related Meetings and Decisions
Project
SDP-19-036 Wilde Lake Multi-use
Pathway

Village
Wilde Lake

10 ft. multi-use pathway on the
north side of Twin Rivers Rd,
between Faulkner Ridge Circle
and Governor Warfield Parkway
Stonewood V Business Center
The applicant is proposing to
construct a commercial project
on 1.79 acres of undeveloped
property located to the rear of
existing commercial buildings
located at 7165 Oakland Mills
Road.

Meeting Date, Time,
and Location
6/20/2019
7:00 pm

Meeting Type

Decision

Stage in the
Development
Review Process

Planning Board Approved 4-0

Final Approval

No action
recommended - CA
planning staff is
supportive of this
project.

Pre-submission Not a decision
Community
making meeting
Meeting

Community
meeting prior to
submission of
development plans

No action
recommended –
more details on this
project are pending

3430 Court House Dr.
Ellicott City, MD
21043
Near
Columbia
Non-village,
Guilford
Industrial Park

6/25/2019
6:00 pm
East Columbia Branch
Library
6600 Cradlerock Way
Columbia MD 21045

CA Staff
Recommendation
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Previous Development Related Meetings and Decisions
Project
BA 766-D British American Bldg,
LLC, et al
Appeal of the Planning Board’s
approval of SDP-17-041 Royal
Farm Store 186 located at the
southeast corner of Snowden
River Parkway and Minstrel Way

Village

Meeting Date, Time,
and Location

Meeting Type

Columbia
6/26/2019
Hearing
Non-village,
9:30 am
Examiner
Guilford
Industrial Park 3430 Court House Dr.
Ellicott City, MD
21043

Decision
The Hearing
Examiner held a
work session on the
rules of procedures
related to whether a
motion to dismiss
and motion to
postpone were
posted in a timely
manner. The
Hearing Examiner
determined that the
petitioner was not
given sufficient time
to respond to the
motion to dismiss
and therefore did
not uphold the
request.

Stage in the
Development
Review Process

CA Staff
Recommendation

Hearing date to be No action
scheduled – hearing recommended.
will narrowly
consider the
Planning Board’s
consideration and
decision on SDP-17041 on the merits.
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Newly Submitted Development Plans
SDP-19-068, Taco Bell
Village of Owen Brown

Project Description: A Site
Development Plan was submitted for
the Taco Bell located at 7102 Minstrel
Way. The existing building will be
replaced with a new building (also
Taco Bell) and adjustments made to
the site design.
Submitted: 6/18/19
Zoning: New Town, NT
Decision/Status: Under review
Next Steps: Planning Board
CA Staff Recommendation: No action
recommended – staff will monitor this
project to ensure adequate landscape
buffering is proposed between the
project and Snowden River Parkway.

WP-19-122, The New Cultural Center
Columbia Non-Village, Downtown Crescent Neighborhood

Project Description: The applicant is
requesting a one-year extension to
complete the Developer’s Agreement
and submit originals (subdivision) due
to difficulty securing full financing to
contract the facility.
Submitted: 6/13/2019
Zoning: New Town
Decision/Status: Under review
Next Steps: Technical review and
staff-level decision
CA Staff Recommendation: No action
recommended.
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Newly Submitted Development Plans
SDP-19-057, Cedar Creek Phase 1
Near River Hill & Hickory Ridge

Project Description: The owner of
property at 7600 Grace Drive
submitted a site development plan for
122 units associated with the greater
development of this 66.8 acre site.
Details of the site development plan
are pending.
Submitted: 6/12/19
Zoning: CEF- R
Decision/Status: Under Review
Next Steps: Review and decision by
Department of Planning and Zoning
CA Staff Recommendation: No action
recommended – Staff will monitor.
The project must be in substantial
compliance with concept plan
approved as part of the CEF-R
rezoning.

10 of 16

Columbia Development Tracker (July 2019)

Last Updated 7/3/2019

This is the monthly status summary of previously proposed development and redevelopment projects in Columbia.

Previous Development Proposals and Decisions
Zoning

Decision/Status

Stage in the Development
Review Process / Next
Steps

CA Staff Recommendation

Locust United Methodist Church, located at 8105
Martin Rd, submitted a site development plan for
Near Hickory
expansion of church facilities and a parking lot addition
Ridge
including the construction of an activity room and ADA
improvements.

R-SC

Application deemed technically
complete on 3/8/2019, awaiting
final approval.

Final DPZ staff-level review

No action recommended Project will have minor impact
to neighborhood.

2/16/2018,

Site Development Plan submitted to redevelop an
Near non-village
existing warehouse for recreational and office uses.
land, Gateway
The project includes reconfiguration of the parking lot.

M-1

Time extension granted per WP-18122; applicant must submit revised Final DPZ staff-level review
plan by 4/26/2019

3/6/2018,
4/12/2018

An Environmental Concept Plan was submitted for
the construction of a new elementary school and
demolition of the existing Talbott Spring
Elementary School. The State Interagency
Oakland Mills
Commission on School Construction supports the
request to build a new school, reversing a previous
ruling that approved renovation/addition project
instead on demolition and replacement.

4/24/2018,
8/7/2018,
3/5/2019

The owner of property at 10685 & 10689 Owen Brown
Road submitted a subdivision plan for 1 open space lot Near
and 12 single-family attached homes on ~4.9 acres of Hickory Ridge
land behind the Abiding Savior Lutheran Church.

4/2/2018,
6/29/2018,
9/21/2018,
5/13/2019

A Final Plan was submitted for a proposal to build
6 single-family detached homes on 2.74 acres at
Near Columbia
7440 Oakland Mills Road in the Guilford
non-village
neighborhood, southeast of Snowden River
Parkway.

5/7/2018,
10/16/2017,
2/25/2019

The owner of property on Grace Drive submitted a
final plan for phase 1 of their development of ~60
Near Hickory
acres. The plan consists of 46 single-family
Ridge and River CEF-R
detached home lots and 83 town home lots, 12
Hill
open space parcels and 8 future residential parcels
to be developed under Phase 2.

Project

Latest Submission or
Project Description
Meeting Date

SDP-18-047

3/1/2018,
11/28/2018,
2/7/2019

SDP-17-010

ECP-18-037

F-18-087
Hidden Ridge

F-18-083

F-18-041
Cedar Creek - Phase 1
(Renamed from Simpson
Oaks)

Village

Environmental Concept
Plans (ECP) are an initial
evaluation of site planning
and undergo DPZ staff-level
technical review.

No action recommended Project does not substantially
change use or operations.

No action recommended - The
applicant will need to meet
current design standards as
determined by the
Development Engineering
Division.

NT

Submit revised

R-SC

Application deemed technically
Final subdivision plan prior
complete on 4/18/2019,
to submitting a SDP
awaiting final approval.

No action recommended – the
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with the
surrounding density and
permitted zoning.

R-12

Deemed Technically Complete
on 6/20/2019

Final subdivision plan prior
to submitting a SDP

No action recommended – the
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with the
surrounding density and
permitted zoning.

Deemed Technically Complete
on 3/21/2019

Final subdivision plan prior
to submitting an SDP

No action recommended, plan
appears consistent with original
site plan concepts and previous
plan submissions.

11 of 16

Columbia Development Tracker (July 2019)

Last Updated 7/3/2019

This is the monthly status summary of previously proposed development and redevelopment projects in Columbia.

Previous Development Proposals and Decisions
Project

Latest Submission or
Project Description
Meeting Date

Village

Zoning

ECP-18-056

6/12/2018

An environmental concept plan was submitted for
a piece of property at 6205 Waterloo Road (east
side of Route 108). The owner is proposing to
Near
build 3 single-family detached dwelling units on
Long Reach
0.76 acres of property currently containing 1
existing single-family home.

SDP-19-014,
F-19-078
Larrick Subdivision

9/21/2018,
12/4/2018,
4/23/2019 (FP
submitted)

The owner of property at 6604 & 6608 Allen Lane
submitted a site development plan proposing to
Near Long
construct four single family detached homes on
Reach
two lots currently consisting of two existing homes
on a combined 2.25 acres.

SP-18-003
Eden Brook

10/23/2018,
1/18/2019,
4/5/2019

A preliminary equivalent sketch plan was
submitted in association with the proposed
development of 24 single-family attached agerestricted houses at the SW corner of Guilford
Road and Eden Brook Drive on the historic
Wildwood House site.

Glen Oaks Place
F-18-121

11/27/2018,
3/1/2019,
5/13/2019

The owner of property submitted a Final Plan to
construct 6 single-family attached dwelling units Near Columbia
on 1.34 acres of land located at 9570 & 9580 Glen Non-village,
R-SA-8
Oaks Lane, near the northwest intersection of
North of MD 32
Route 32 and I-95.

11/21/2018,
2/27/2019

This SDP is for stream restoration work at 9190
Red Branch Road associated with ECP-17-043 and
a development proposal to demolish the existing
building and replace it with four buildings. The
stream restoration is required to address
mediation of prior site violations currently under
active enforcement measures.

SDP-19-034

Near
Kings
Contrivance

R-SC

R-12

R-12

Columbia NonVillage, Oakland
NT
Ridge Industrial
Park

Decision/Status

Stage in the Development
Review Process / Next
Steps

CA Staff Recommendation

Submit Revised

Environmental Concept
Plans (ECP) are an initial
evaluation of site planning
and undergo DPZ staff-level
technical review.

No action recommended - The
applicant will need to meet
current design standards as
determined by the
Development Engineering
Division.

Recorded 5/31/2019

Final approval/signature by
DPZ staff -> proceed to
permits

No action recommended – the
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with the
permitted density and
redevelopment of large lots
with infill development to match
surrounding densities.

Approved/Signed 6/25/2019

CA staff submitted comments to
the Subdivision Review
Staff-level review by the
Committee indicating the
Subdivision Review
Hearing Examiner’s
Committee and assessment requirements that the applicant
of APFO. Next step: Final
coordinate the shown trail
Plan
connections with CA and noting
that the Applicant has not yet
reached out to CA to do so.

Applicant must submit revised

Deemed Technically Complete
on 4/1/2019

Submission of SDP

No action recommended – the
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with the
surrounding density and zoning.

If approved, applicant may
proceed to permits.

No action recommended –
application is being submitted
to address prior violations and is
needed to mediate current site
issues.
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Columbia Development Tracker (July 2019)

Last Updated 7/3/2019

This is the monthly status summary of previously proposed development and redevelopment projects in Columbia.

Previous Development Proposals and Decisions
Project

SDP-19-032
Brightview Columbia

Latest Submission or
Project Description
Meeting Date

11/13/2018,
1/7/2019,
2/27/2019

11/21/2018,
SDP-19-025
2/28/2019,
Cedar Creek Bridge and Trail
5/28/2019

SP-18-002
Lufti Property

SDP-19-037

SDP-19-022, Cedar Creek Phase 1

FDP-DC-L-2

Village

A site development plan was submitted in
association with the proposed development of a
90 unit age-restricted apartment on ~ 6.69 acres Near Hickory
for property located at the southeast quadrant of Ridge
Martin Road and Seneca Drive.

An SDP was submitted for an environmental trail
connecting the Cedar Creek development to the
Robinson Nature Center. This project is a
community enhancement and a condition of
approval for CEF-R associated with the adjacent
Cedar Creek residential development on Grace
Drive.

Zoning

CEF-M

Near River Hill &
NT
Hickory Ridge

12/3/2018,
2/26/2019,
6/12/2019

The owner of property at 6301 Guilford Road
submitted a preliminary equivalent sketch plan
Near
proposing the development of five single family
River Hill
detached homes on a 1.56 acre property currently
consisting of one single family home.

12/7/2018,
3/4/2019

Howard Research and Development Corporation
submitted a site development plan for a 0.6 acre
public square at the lakefront area of Downtown
Columbia located between Columbia Association
lakefront land and the Whole Foods north of the
Whole Foods site.

1/18/2019,
4/11/2019

The owner of property at 7600 Grace Drive
submitted a site development plan for 7 buildable
lots (five single-family attached homes & 2 single Near River Hill
family detached) which are part of a larger
development proposal at this site

1/17/2019,
4/30/2019

Howard Research and Development Corporation
submitted a Final Development Plan for an area in
the Lakefront North neighborhood of Downtown
Downtown
Columbia. The proposal includes mixed-use retail,
Columbia, Non- NT
medical office, and residential development
Village
consisting of 775 units on 13 acres of property
located between Little Patuxent Pkwy and Lake
Kittamaqundi and north of Wincopin Circle.

R-12

Downtown
Columbia, Non- NT
Village

CEF-R

Decision/Status

Stage in the Development
Review Process / Next
Steps

CA Staff Recommendation

Deemed Technically Complete
on 3/26/2019

Review by DPZ technical
staff. Final step in
development review
process pending conditional
use approval by the Hearing
Examiner for the proposed
age-restricted use.

No action recommended –
development is consistent with
concept plan approved as part
of CEF-M zoning change.

Under Review

Technical review by staff

No action recommended –
development is consistent with
concept plan approved as part
of CEF-R zoning change.

Under Review

Staff-level review by the
Subdivision Review
Committee. Next step: Final
Plan

No action recommended – the
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with the
surrounding density and zoning.

Technically complete on
4/17/2019

Planning Board - Decision
making role

No action recommended. CA
staff has provided comments on
the submitted plan and will
continue to monitor this project
and communicate with HRD.

Technically complete on
5/23/2019

DPZ staff level review and
decision

No action recommended –
project is consistent with prior
approvals and substantially
conforms to the approved
concept plan.

Applicant must submit revised
plan

Planning Board Hearing

No action recommended. CA
staff will review plans.
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Columbia Development Tracker (July 2019)

Last Updated 7/3/2019

This is the monthly status summary of previously proposed development and redevelopment projects in Columbia.

Previous Development Proposals and Decisions
Project

Latest Submission or
Project Description
Meeting Date

Village

Zoning

Decision/Status

Stage in the Development
Review Process / Next
Steps

1/11/2019,
3/25/2019

As part of the Downtown Columbia Plan
Community Enhancement, Programs, and Public
Amenities (CEPPA) #18 requirements, Howard
Research and Development Corporation is
Wilde Lake
proposing to construct a pedestrian and bicycle
Village
side path facility on the northern side of Twin
Rivers Road from Faulkner Road to Governor
Warfield Parkway. (predominantly within CA open
space)

3/5/2019,
5/20/2019

A Site Development Plan was submitted for a
property located at 9199 Red Branch Road. The
SDP is proposal is to tear down of the existing
building and replace it with a three-story selfstorage facility.

WP-19-081;
ECP-19-042;
S-19-008

3/7/2019,
4/26/2019 (ECP),
4/29/2019 (SP)

The owner of property at 9454 Vollmerhausen
Drive is proposing to build 8 single family detached
houses on a property currently developed with
one home and several outbuildings. The applicant Near Kings
submitted an Environmental Concept Plan, Sketch Contrivance
Plan and an alternative compliance request to
remove 22 specimen trees out of 27 existing on
the property.

R-SC

WP Approved on 5/30/2019,
ECP approved 5/1/2019,
Sketch Plan approved
6/19/2019

F-19-062
Atholton Overlook

3/7/2019,
5/1/2019

The owner of property at 6549 Freetown Road
submitted a final subdivision plan proposing to
build 5 single-family detached dwelling units on 2
acres of property currently developed with 1
existing single-family home.

R-12

Technically Complete 6/6/2019 decision by Department of

P-19-001
Arnold’s Corner

2/26/2019,
5/24/2019

A preliminary plan was submitted proposing 18
single-family detached homes on what is currently
Long Reach
Grandfather’s Garden Club (5320 Phelps Luck
Road).

SDP-19-055
Robinson Overlook

The owner of property at 7410 Grace Drive
submitted Site Development Plan for 48 dwelling
units spread between five residential apartment
4/1/2019, 6/17/19
buildings. This is a Howard County Housing
Commission project with a low, moderate, and
mixed income housing structure.

SDP-19-036, Wilde Lake
Multi-use Pathway

SDP-19-049

Columbia Nonvillage

Near
Hickory Ridge

Near Hickory
Ridge

CA Staff Recommendation

NT

Approved by Planning Board Plans will be submitted for final Planning Board Meeting
signature

CA planning staff is supportive
of this project and is reviewing
plan submittals in coordination
with the CA Open Space and
Facilities team to evaluate
impacts to CA property and
coordination on required
easements.

NT

Applicant must submit revised
plan

Technical review and
decision by DPZ staff

No action recommended. Per
the FDP, self-storage facilities
are a permitted use and this
project is consistent with
surrounding uses.

Technical review and
decision by Department of
Planning and Zoning

No action recommended. The
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with the
surrounding density and zoning.
The applicant will need to
propose an alternative
compliance scheme that
adequately mitigates the
proposed removal of the
proposed specimen trees.

Technical review and
Planning and Zoning

NT

POR

Technical review and
Technically Complete 6/19/2019 decision by Department of
Planning and Zoning

Under Review

No action recommended – the
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with the
surrounding density and zoning.
No action recommended – the
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with prior
approvals and the surrounding
density and zoning.

No action recommended. The
use is permitted in the POR zone
Next Steps - Planning Board and CA planning staff is
supportive of this mixed-income
proposal.
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This is the monthly status summary of previously proposed development and redevelopment projects in Columbia.

Previous Development Proposals and Decisions
Project

SDP-19-050
Oak Hill Subdivision

ECP-19-048
Gateway Medical Office
Building

ECP-19-046,
Glen Oaks Place

S-19-009
Ellicott Gardens II

SDP-19-065
Hidden Ridge

ECP-19-061

F-19-049,
Hilltop Landing II

Latest Submission or
Project Description
Meeting Date

Village

Zoning

Decision/Status

Stage in the Development
Review Process / Next
Steps

CA Staff Recommendation

Under Review

Technical review and
decision by Department of
Planning and Zoning

No action recommended – the
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with the
surrounding density and zoning.

Applicant must submit revised
plan

Technical review and
decision by Department of
Planning and Zoning

No action recommended - The
applicant will need to meet
current design standards as
determined by the
Development Engineering
Division.

3/28/2019,
6/13/2019

The owner of property at 9692 Oak Hill Road is
proposing to build 6 single family detached houses
Near Dorsey’s
on three parcels consisting of a total a 4.25 acres.
Search
The property is currently developed with one
home and one accessory structure.

3/26/2019

The owner of property at 8201 John McAdam Dr.
submitted an environmental concept plan for the
commercial development of one parcel.

3/18/2019

The owner of property at 9570 & 9580 Glen Oaks
Lane submitted an Environmental Concept Plan to Near Columbia
construct 6 single-family attached dwelling units Non-village,
R-SA-8
on 1.34 acres of land located near the northwest North of MD 32
intersection of Route 32 and I-95.

Applicant must submit revised
plan

Technical review and
decision by Department of
Planning and Zoning

No action recommended - The
applicant will need to meet
current design standards as
determined by the
Development Engineering
Division.

A sketch plan and environmental concept plan
were submitted for the proposed development of
a 75 unit apartment building at 5513 & 5511
Near Long
Waterloo Road on 3 acres of property partially
Reach
developed with an existing surface parking lot.
This is a Howard County Housing Commission
project.

SP approved 6/25/2019

SDP to Planning Board

No action recommended – the
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with the
surrounding density and zoning.

Final subdivision plan prior
to submitting a SDP

No action recommended – the
proposed development of this
parcel is consistent with the
surrounding density and
permitted zoning.

Applicant must submit revised

Technical review and stafflevel decision

No action recommended - The
applicant will need to meet
current design standards as
determined by the
Development Engineering
Division.

Applicant must submit revised

No action recommended – the
Review and decision by
proposed development of this
Department of Planning and parcel is consistent with the
Zoning
surrounding density and
permitted zoning.

SP 3/12/19,
5/7/2019
ECP 3/8/19,
4/17/2019

R-20

Columbia NonVillage, Gateway POR
District

6/4/2019

The owner of property at 10685 & 10689 Owen Brown
Road submitted a subdivision plan for 1 open space lot Near
and 12 single-family attached homes on ~4.9 acres of Hickory Ridge
land behind the Abiding Savior Lutheran Church.

5/30/2019

An existing commercial property located at 8601
Robert Fulton Dr. has submitted an environmental
concept plan associated with resurfacing the
Near River Hill
existing parking lot, adding additional parking in
the rear and upgrading their storm water
management.

5/22/2019

The owner of property at 10949 Hilltop Lane
submitted a final subdivision plan for four single- Near Hickory
family detached homes on 1 acre with an existing Ridge
single family home.

POR

R-SC

B-1

R-SC

Applicant must submit revised
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Columbia Development Tracker (July 2019)

Last Updated 7/3/2019

This is the monthly status summary of previously proposed development and redevelopment projects in Columbia.

Previous Development Proposals and Decisions
Project

F-19-084,
Abiding Savior Lutheran
Church

WP-19-104

Latest Submission or
Project Description
Meeting Date

Village

Zoning

Decision/Status

Stage in the Development
Review Process / Next
Steps

CA Staff Recommendation

R-SC

Recorded 6/25/2019

DPZ staff level review then
recordation of subdivision.

No action recommended

Approved 6/7/2019

If approved the applicant
No action recommended. The
will submit final subdivision
request is procedural in nature.
plan F-14-108.

5/15/2019

A final subdivision plan was submitted to perform
an originals only minor adjustment of the forest
conservation designated area with no net change
Near Hickory
and location of easements. This project is
Ridge
associated with F-18-087 (Hidden Ridge) which is a
12 unit SFA project located on the rear portion of
the site.

5/10/2019

The applicant has submitted an alternative
compliance request to meet the requirement that
Final Subdivision Plats be submitted within 180
days of final plan approval. The original plat
Columbia Nonshowing the dedication of road frontage on
village, Guilford NT
Snowden River Parkway and Minstrel Way was
Industrial Park
submitted in 2014 and now that the applicant has
an approved plan, they wish to proceed with the
original submission of the Final Subdivision plat.
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Open Space and
Facility Services
July 2019
Update
JULY 25, 2019

Capital
Improvement
Projects

Boardwalk Replacement
Four Foot Trail

AFTER

AFTER

BEFORE

Capital
Improvement
Projects

Boardwalk Replacement
April Brook Circle
AFTER

BEFORE

BEFORE

Capital
Improvement
Projects

Bridge Replacement
WLBR07
AFTER

Construction

Locker Room Renovation
Dasher Green Pool

BEFORE

Construction

Shade Structures Installed
Dasher Green Pool
AFTER

BEFORE

Construction

Locker Room Renovation

Construction

Hopewell Pool

Construction

Baby Pool and Spa Renovation
Hawthorn Pool

BEFORE

Construction

New Pool Deck
Hawthorn Pool
AFTER

Construction

Interior Renovation

Construction

Supreme Sports Club

Community
Engagement

Splash Pad and Shade Structures Installed
Running Brook Pool

Open Space
Management

Independence Day Celebration
Lake Kittamaqundi Setup and Clean Up

BEFORE

Open Space
Management

Tree Recycling
Lake Kittamaqundi

Community
Engagement

Camp Make A Difference
Lake Elkhorn

BEFORE

Community
Engagement

Solar Coop Information Session
Dorsey’s Search

BEFORE

Community
Engagement

Pollinator Garden
Stevens Forest

Community
Engagement

AC Recycling Event
Columbia Sports Park

Landscape
Services

Forsythia Pruning
Swansfield
AFTER

BEFORE

BEFORE

Landscape
Services

Dropoff Reinforcement
Long Reach Tennis Club
AFTER

BEFORE
BEFORE

In Person: Brian Wood

No Board action requested or
required

Columbia Association 2019 5-year Strategic Plan
Mission: E ngage our diverse community, cultivate a unique sense of place and enhance quality
of life
Vision: CA creates and supports solutions to meet the evolving needs of a dynamic and
inclusive community.

Strategic Priority: Identity
Goal: Significantly improve CA’s visibility as a valued partner in enriching the quality of life and
community cohesion/connections.
Objective 1: Develop a baseline assessment of CA’s awareness, understanding, and perception
in the community by (FY) Q1 2020. Use the assessment to Identify shortfalls and opportunities.
Objective 2: Increase CA’s awareness and value perception by 15%.
Objective 3: Create true partnership with village boards (i.e. Form work groups, host town
halls).
Objective 4: Drive community cohesion via events sponsored by CA.
Objective 5: Improve communications from CA to community and partners.
Objective 6: Monitor CA’s reputation and recognition in the community by surveying the
community every 2-3 years and developing a subsequent plan for optimization and
improvement. The first survey should be conducted toward the end of FY2020 to assess
communication effectiveness following baseline.

Strategic Priority: Resource Stewardship
Goal: Create systems to align physical asset and financial resources to meet CA’s strategic goals
and mission.
Objective 1: Create a system to assess the physical condition of CA’s assets by 4.30.20.
Objective 2: Create a system to evaluate community impact of CA’s assets.
Objective 3: Create a scorecard combining assessments and evaluation to prioritize capital and
budget resources/investments by 8.31.21.
Action Step A: Identify opportunities to provide greater access for all residents.
Action Step B: Develop assessment tool to prioritize community needs and
opportunities against available budget resources.
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Action Step C: Develop a process to identify assets that should be acquired, modified, or
consolidated.
Objective 4: Create a 5-10 year capital investment plan based on the outputs above by 4.30.22.
Objective 5: Determine quality of revenue (consistency, dependability) needed to support
programs and services by 4.30.23.
Action Step A: Create a zero based budget review (that includes a competitive analysis
to other similar organizations).
Action Step B: Develop 10 year forecast.

Strategic Priority: Environmental Sustainability
Goal: Advance Columbia as a leader in environmental sustainability in Maryland.
Objective 1: Maintain and advance CA’s climate change mitigation and adaptation efforts.
Action Step A: CA will advocate for and support access to multi-modal public
transportation in the community.
Action Step B: CA will advance best procurement and waste management practices that
increase source reduction, increase the use of recycled content materials, increase
recycling/composting rates, and reduce single use plastic consumption.
Action Step C: CA will continue efforts to reduce energy consumption and support clean
energy through its existing solar farm and procurement of renewable energy credits.
Action Step D: CA will work to reduce fossil fuel consumption associated with its vehicle
and equipment fleet and encourage similar practices in its contractors.
Action Step E: CA will conduct a Columbia-wide climate change vulnerability assessment
to identify key climate risks affecting its operations, property, and public safety.
Objective 2: Advance sustainable land use practices and improve the quality of streams, ponds,
and lakes.
Action Step A: CA will refine its use of best practices for fertilization, weed, and pest
management so as to maintain aesthetically pleasing open space while reducing the
potential harmful impacts to humans and wildlife.
Action Step B: CA will enhance its open space management practices to support native
species of grasses, increase rainwater water retention, support pollinators, and increase
2

carbon sequestration.
Action Step C: CA will advocate for advanced stormwater management practices in
developments in and around Columbia.
Action Step D: CA will reduce stream erosion and flooding by deploying advanced
stream stabilization techniques and reducing upstream runoff volume by promoting
best management practices for impervious surface area.
Objective 3: Educate and connect citizens to CA’s open spaces and best practices for
sustainability.
Action Step A: CA will partner with villages to develop opportunities for resident
engagement and education.
Action Step B: CA will develop engagement programs and materials that help advance
community sustainability and connection to open space.
Action Step C: CA will work to more effectively promote its activities and performance
associated with improving the environmental sustainability of its operations and land
management practices.

Strategic Priority: Leadership Development
Goal: Increase participation among a demographically diverse community to serve in leadership
roles on CA advisory committees, community groups, and the CA Board.
Objective 1: Outreach to cultural and diverse community.
Action Step: Annually conduct at least one new outreach initiative.

Strategic Priority: Advocacy
Goal: Advocate on issues that are key to Columbia’s values and are key to our future as a
unique, diverse, master planned community.
Objective 1: Conduct an annual evaluation of CA priorities that considers all stakeholders.
Objective 2: Coordinate advocacy efforts with Village Boards where appropriate.
Objective 3: Monitor issues in the following categories for advocacy:
● New town zoning
● Environment
● Land use
● Alternative housing
● Smart development
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July 19, 2019

Chair’s Remarks
July 25, 2019 CA Board Meeting
Date

Activity

Time

Jul 20, 2019

Skill Share Fair & Repair Cafe (HC Center for the Arts)

Noon

Jul 21, 2019

Bark in the Park (Town Center)

2:00 PM RR

Jul 23, 2019

Art Center Advisory Committee meeting (Art Center)

6:30 PM

Jul 23, 2019

World Languages Cafe (50+ Senior Center at East Columbia
Library)

7:00 PM

Jul 23, 2019

Audit Committee meeting

7:00 PM

Jul 24, 2019

Bugs That Bite session (Historic Oakland)

7:00 PM

Jul 24, 2019

Zoning Board hearing on redevelopment of Hickory Ridge
Village Center (George Howard Building)

6:30 PM

Jul 24, 2019

Community Movie Night on the Lawn (Harper’s Choice)

8:00 PM

Jul 25, 2019

CA Board meeting

7:00 PM

Jul 26, 2019

CA Middle School Pool Party (see website)

6:30 PM RR

Jul 31, 2019

Sundae Making & Rock Decorating (Kings Contrivance)

1:00 PM RR

Aug 6, 2019

National Night Out (various places)

6:00 PM

Aug 7, 2019

International & Multicultural Advisory Committee meeting

7:00 PM

Aug 9, 2019

CA High School Pool Party (see website)

6:30 PM RR

Aug 11, 2019

Second Sunday Swim (see website for details)

Noon

Aug 12, 2019

Bugs That Bite session (River Hill)

7:00 PM

Aug 14, 2019

Climate Change & Sustainability Advisory Committee meeting 7:00 PM
(Long Reach Indoor Tennis facility)

Aug 20, 2019

Aquatics Advisory Committee meeting (Hawthorn Center)

7:00 PM

Aug 21, 2019

Tennis Advisory Committee meeting (Long Reach Indoor
Tennis facility)

7:00 PM

RR = Registration Required or there is a Cost associated with this Activity
Remember that the Summer Lakefront Summer Festival is underway. Please see the website
www.columbiaassociation.org/events/lakefront-summer-festival/ for schedule of events.
And the Summer Lakefront Wednesday Concert series is also underway. Please see the website
www.columbiaassociation.org/events/lakefront-wednesdays-concert-series/ for schedule of events.

July 2019
Office of the President/CEO
The President/CEO attended a number of events from late June through early
July including:
 Groundbreaking ceremony for the Howard County Veterans Monument
and Neighborhood Square – 29 June;
 Inaugural concert of Soulful Symphony with Darin Atwater – 29 June;
and the
 Fourth of July Parade – Longfellow Neighborhood in Harper’s Choice.
The Howard County Economic Development Authority (HCEDA) announced
the completion of the first phase of the Howard County Innovation Center
Project, a product of County and State-wide initiatives to develop technology,
cyber, and innovations communities in the Baltimore-Washington corridor.
Renovations to the third floor of the building at 6751 Columbia Gateway Drive
were completed, and the Maryland Center for Entrepreneurship (MCE) was
moved to the facility. The third floor is now home to the MCE’s 19 resident
companies, multiple business support organizations, and four HCEDA staff
members.
The Downtown Columbia Arts and Culture Commission and Soulful Symphony
announced a change in the Symphony’s concert schedule. The September 14
concert, “Under an Open Heaven,” will take place as scheduled. The “Slang”
concert will be moved to a date in October. The changes were made as a
result of injuries sustained by Soulful Symphony founder and artistic director,
Darin Atwater, in a recent automobile accident.
Howard Hughes Corporation is conducting a review of potential strategic
alternatives to maximize shareholder value. Greg Fitchitt issued a brief
statement saying “Here in Downtown Columbia, it will remain business as
usual as we continue to operate our assets and grow boldly our award-winning
master planned community. We look forward to continuing our partnership and
strengthening our long-term commitment to our region.”

Administrative Services
Highlights
Much of the organization worked on the Dayforce implementation; the
commitment and effort of the core team and their colleagues throughout CA
were extraordinary. The first pay date was July 5, 2019. While there are a
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Administrative Services (cont’d)
number of issues to analyze and correct, the overall results were very good. As of July 10, only one
manual payroll check has been needed. The team is documenting issues as they are identified,
assigning responsibility for resolving them and working through each one systematically, focusing on
identifying and addressing root causes.
The IT team shut down the server for the previous timekeeping application, known as TKMS, so that it
is no longer accessible; thus, eliminating the access risk that it presented formerly.
The Accounting, Purchasing and IT divisions have also been working on the independent audits of CA's
financial statements and the 401(k) plan. The audit reports will be presented by the external auditors to
the Audit Committee at a meeting on July 23.
The Annual Charge Division is very busy answering phone calls, assisting walk-in customers and
responding to email inquiries related to the July 1, 2019 annual charge billing. The team is also
processing tax credit requests and payments as quickly as possible.
Challenges
The entire department, particularly the Dayforce implementation team, has worked extremely hard for
months now, and there is still work to be done to address issues in the modules implemented to date,
and to complete the roll-out of the on-boarding and learning modules. Maintaining this level of effort and
energy for the project, as well as continuing to handle their day-to-day responsibilities, is very
challenging; yet, we will get it done!
Opportunities
We are already seeing efficiency gains through the elimination of paper time sheets, the availability of
electronic pay stubs, and the use of the team member self-service option, as well as the analytics the
system provides.

Sport and Fitness
Highlights
On Monday, July 15, Sport and Fitness held it first weekday Open House. Healthy breakfasts were
provided and personal trainers were available at Haven on the Lake and the fitness clubs. Community
members were offered a wide variety of free group fitness classes and personal training programs at
the fitness clubs; member rates on green fees and free carts at Hobbit’s Glen Golf Club; and the
opportunity to play pickleball at the Owen Brown Tennis Club, at no charge.
Golf
Hobbits Glen Golf Club hosted the United States Golf Association (USGA) sectional qualifier on July 89. This event attracted local players from Maryland and Virginia, and as far away as Connecticut.
Torrential rain on July 8 pushed the tournament to July 9 and 10.
Sean Gilliland and his team worked diligently to prepare and maintain the course, which impressed the
players and officials. The two-day event started with 130 players, with one person qualifying to move on
to the final championship.
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Sport and Fitness (cont’d)
Group Fitness
Haven on the Lake hosted its first Goat Yoga class on Saturday, July 13. Sixty individuals attended and
flowed through yoga postures while smiling, laughing, and petting the eight baby goats. Following the
class, the attendees were provided a light breakfast in Haven’s cafe. Haven’s next Goat Yoga class will
be held on August 25, 4-5:30pm.
Tennis
Approximately 1,000 members and guests from the area participated in the 2019 United States Tennis
Association (USTA) regional championships held at the Owen Brown and Wilde Lake Tennis Clubs on
July 13-15.
More than 80 youth tennis players from the Mid-Atlantic region participated in the Bobby Hoffman L7
Tournament on June 15 at the Owen Brown Tennis Club. The tournament is held annually in memory
of CA tennis coach Bobby Hoffman.
Supreme Sports Club
Renovations continue at the Supreme Sports Club. Framing is up in the upper locker rooms and work
is progressing on the roof, pool deck and plumbing upgrades.
New Matrix Indoor bikes arrived in June to elevate the CACycle experience. Two new Octane Lateral X
cardio machines were introduced to the main fitness floor.
SkatePark Birthday Celebration
The SkatePark celebrated its 20th birthday with a party on June 28. About 175 individuals came and
participated in skateboarding competitions, dancing, and enjoyed samples from community food
vendors and experienced products from skate companies.
Opportunities
After several years of incremental growth, we believe the new spin bikes at Columbia Gym and
Supreme Sports Club will provide a greater range of tools to heighten the energy and excitement, which
members are increasingly seeking in our cycle classes.
Challenges
As evidenced in past Clarabridge surveys, maintaining the member experience during renovations in a
facility is difficult. Staff is working hard to maintain the fitness club experience as we progress through
Phase I and look to begin Phase II of the Supreme Sports Club renovation.

Planning and Community Affairs
Highlights
The Millennial Advisory Committee held its kickoff meeting in June 2019. Among the topics discussed
was an upcoming CA-sponsored community event targeted at Columbia’s millennial population. The
Committee will meet monthly on the second Monday starting in August 2019.
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Open Space and Facility Services
Community Improvement and Capital Projects
Highlights
Long Reach
The Phelps Luck Basketball Court renovation was completed, and the Starburn Path Tot Lot pathway
surfacing and underdrains were replaced.
Owen Brown:
Lake Elkhorn - 1,700 feet of pathway connections to neighborhoods were renovated on south side of
the lake.
Oakland Mills
Renovations to the Bluecoat Tot Lot were completed. Farewell Road - 2,300 feet of pathway were
renovated.
Dorsey’s Search
Red Bandanna – Three drainage culverts were installed, and 1,000 feet of pathway were renovated.
Columbia-Wide
 Ten pedestrian bridges were replaced.
 Supreme Sports Club phase 1A construction is currently underway including interior wall
construction, aquatics area improvements, and roofing work.
 Phase III of improvements to the Ice Rink are underway, which include new flooring, new safety
handrails, and netting. Improvements will be completed by the end of August.
 The Running Brook water journey pad has been completed and is open for use.
 Horse Center restrooms upgrades and ADA improvements were completed in time for summer
camps.
Challenges
Removing the running/walking track in the Supreme Sports Club will require specialty contractors to
work on the sub-surface, a job unknown to us until the track was removed. We are estimating that this
extra work will add approximately two to three weeks to the arena shutdown schedule.

Energy Management
Highlights
The design phase for the Slayton House theater sound and lighting renovation was recently completed.
The improvements, upon completion, will significantly raise the quality of productions at the theater, and
save energy through the use of LED lighting technology.
A high efficiency ENERGY STAR HVAC system was installed at Kahler Hall.
Two energy-related community events were recently completed. A community energy meeting, held at
Linden Hall on June 11, was attended by approximately 20 residents. A dehumidifier/window AC unit
recycling event, held at the Sports Park on June 22, drew 300 people, who dropped off more than 400
units to be recycled and sustainably disposed.
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Open Space and Facility Services (cont’d)
Open Space Operations
Highlights
The Harpers Choice field team built a float for the Longfellow Parade that included a tot lot. The River
Hill field team “dressed up” a truck for the River Hill parade. The field teams, as well, participated in the
parades.
The entire Open Space Operations team worked on preparations, event set-up, and site clean-up for
the fireworks display at Lake Kittamaqundi. More than 300 hours were spent supporting July 4 events.
A large tree removal project was completed at Lake Kittamaqundi. More than 100 dead trees were
removed including a large number of ash trees.
Challenges
Tree limbs and logs remain along some pathways in the Villages of River Hill and Kings Contrivance
from the recent tornado and subsequent storm damage. We are working through the priorities;
however, it will take several additional weeks to safely remove all of the debris.
Opportunities
The large number of trees removed at Lake Kittamaqundi provided an opportunity to use the logs onsite for an upcoming stream bank stabilization project. The logs have been staged safely and the areas
have been seeded with an ecological mix to re-establish the forest undergrowth. A more
comprehensive tree re-planting project will commence this fall.

Watershed Management and Open Space Enhancements
Highlights
CA staff participated in Camp Make a Difference programing with sessions at the Lake Elkhorn
dock. Staff and campers looked at overall lake water quality, bugs, and fish that live in the lake and
what CA and residents can do to improve water quality. Staff used a table top rainfall simulator to
demonstrate the effect of increasing organic matter in soil on runoff retention. During one session,
campers sorted through aquatic vegetation from a CA harvester and rescued minnows trapped in the
vegetation.
Construction has started on the bioretention facility that will replace the failed sand filter in the
Maintenance Facility equipment yard. The new bioretention facility will provide treatment for runoff
without the clogging issues that plagued the sand filter.
CA has been awarded a $209,951 grant from the Chesapeake and Coastal Bays Trust Fund, managed
by the Maryland Department of Natural Resources. The funds will reimburse CA for costs associated
with the installation of a bioretention facility in open space in the Village of Long Reach and for installed
rain gardens. The funding for the rain gardens is geographically targeted by the State and limited to the
Dorsey Run sub-watershed in the Village of Long Reach.
Challenges
Obtaining funds for rain gardens in other areas within the boundaries of CA is a challenge.
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Community Services
Highlights
Columbia Art Center’s Youth Program hosted an interactive art activity at the Columbia Festival of the
Arts Lakefest, June 14-16, at Lake Kittamaqundi. Children and adults created and assembled butterfly
creations which were then hung on a tree and displayed with outdoor lights. The Youth Program also
provided painting and printmaking activities for attendees to enjoy.
Columbia Art Center’s Ceramics Program hosted a craft booth at Lakefest with wheel and handbuilding
demonstrations and mini sculpture clay activities for all ages to enjoy. More than 450 people came
through to both Art Center locations and participated in the activities.
Volunteer Center Serving Howard County extended invitations to Maggie Brown Scholarship awardees
to speak at the opening of Camp Make A Difference. Kevin Tu (June 24) and Yamini Ananth (July 1)
accepted. They spoke to middle school attendees about the value of service and how the service they
performed impacted them. The invitation is sent annually and the speakers inspire the campers, as well
as the adults.
On July 8, the campers met a Howard County graduate who attended Camp Make A Difference in
2011/2012.
Opportunities
Columbia Art Center launched its summer outreach by participating with the Head Start Summer
Enrichment program, offering art activities for preschool children. A workshop was held on July 9 at
First Presbyterian Head Start and a second workshop was held at the Cedar Lane Head Start on
July 15.
Columbia Art Center also provided summer art workshops for the Children’s Magnet Montessori School
on July 19.
Columbia Art Center will offer a variety of sampling workshops this summer designed for adults (ages
17 and up) to work with different art forms. The offerings include Give It A Spin on the Wheel on
July 20 or July 27, Fused Glass Bowl on July 27 or August 24, Dabble in Watercolor (held on July 9),
Pet Portrait Paint Night on August 9, One Stroke Painting Hydrangeas on August 13, Block Printmaking
on July 20, Earrings Extravaganza on August 20, and Ukrainian Egg Decorating on July 28.
Visit Columbiaartcenter.org or email art.staff@columbiaassociation.org.
Volunteer Center Serving Howard County will again collaborate with the Prepare for Success program
by distributing collection boxes for school supplies at numerous CA facilities. Boxes were decorated by
students enrolled in CA School Age Services programs.
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Communications and Marketing
Highlights
We are promoting a new offer for individuals on active duty in the military. Active duty military personnel
may join a CA membership, with no payment to get started. If deployed, they will be able to cancel their
annual CA membership with no cancellation fee.
From the digital marketing front, for two months now we have been testing new lead landing pages for
Fitness, Golf and Haven on the Lake. The new landing pages are showing a higher conversion rate.
Lead form submissions jumped from 5 to 54 in two weeks just for CA memberships.
In June and July, we continued our digital banner ads through multiple vendors focusing on CA and
Haven on the Lake memberships. Paid search ads also continued to run with focus on Play
memberships and the outdoor pools. We also targeted new Howard County residents with a direct mail
piece for a free pass to try out Haven on the Lake and a special membership offer. Additionally, we ran
digital banner ads on The Baltimore Sun and Explore Howard County websites promoting CA’s Open
House on July 15.
Our digital leads grew 176% in June 2019 compared to a year ago. Overall traffic to landing pages
grew an average of 119%, with the largest growth on golf pages from Google and Pandora ads. Our
first Instagram Takeover launched on June 21, with Megan Cooperman sharing a “day in the life” of a
group fitness supervisor. Megan’s 14 posts drove an engagement of 4,807 total impressions and
offered a new way of leveraging social media with team member participation.
The upgraded audio system has been completed in the boardroom at CA Headquarters. New, more
advanced microphones with longer goosenecks have been installed and calibrated to optimize sound
and recordings from board meetings.
Challenges
The building of webpages for the redeveloped website continues this month. Testing of the beta site will
begin at the end of July. During this time, a dedicated team of CA team members will be reviewing
webpages to check content, functionality, etc., before the new website goes live in mid-August. This will
be a heavy lift for a small team within CA, as well as with our two agencies helping us prepare for this
launch.
The Communications & Marketing team will be short-staffed for a short while, balancing our
communications and marketing initiatives with recruitment efforts, as two team members have recently
left for other opportunities.

CA in the News
Recent coverage in the media included tributes to Jane Dembner in the Baltimore Sun, Business
Monthly, Columbia Flier, HoCo Connect, and Village Green/Town Squared; a mention of CA’s outdoor
movies in the Baltimore Sun; a feature article on Columbia Neighborhood Swim League’s 50th
anniversary in the Columbia Flier; and regular coverage of Columbia Neighborhood Swim League in
the Columbia Flier.
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Thought of the Month
“They always say that time changes things, but you actually have to change them yourself.”
Andy Warhol
Artist, Director and Producer
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Report from the IAT, July 2019
Anticipating the Howard County Arts Council follow up for a potential merger of Downtown
Columbia Arts organizations, the Trust voted to adopt the following requirements for any new
organization including the Trust:
1. Commitment t providing substantial, high quality, free programming as required by the CA/
Trust easement.
2. Commitment to intentional inclusion and cooperation with the entire community, including
arts organizations, cultural organizations, and other Columbia and Howard County based
organizations.
3. Commitment to following all requirements and guidelines adopted by the Columbia
Association and protecting and preserving the land for generations to come.
The Downtown Columbia Arts and Culture Mediation process is continuing and has requested
information from the DCACC, the CFA, and the IAT. These are preliminary steps which have
not yet been discussed by the IAT board.
This year’s inaugural Columbia Orchestra pops concert was a raging success. Name sponsor
was Baltimore-Washington Financial Advisors, and the event was incorporated into the
Columbia Festival of the Arts. A delighted a crowd of over 6,000, was a record for the Trust.
More concerts are scheduled this season.
The first annual Chrysalis Masters, an arts based miniture golf tournament in the Park, was
held last week with a Chrysalsi green jacket as the prize.
The popular Chrysalis Kids series will continue through the summer along with the Chrysalis
Cabaret series. Other events such as Maker Faire and other festivals and concerts will round
out the season.
Lin Eagan
Chair

Board Request Tracking Log
FY 20
As of July 19, 2019
A

C

D

E

F

Origination
Date

Assigned To
(Department)

Due Date

4/25/2019

General Counsel

5/25/2019

Resolution
E-Mail sent
5/24/2019

5/7/2019

General Counsel

5/31/2019

E-Mail sent
5/22/2019

3 Ginny Thomas

Issue/Task Description
Would like a copy of the policy on
easements
Please provide a legal opinion on
the flooding issue on May Day
Court

4 Ginny Thomas

Request to coordinate a group of
tennis and pickleball players to
analyze the court usage issues

2/5/2019

President's Office

6/30/2019

President/
CEO spoke
with Ms.
Thomas

5 Dick Boulton

Questions from Dick Boulton re:
grants in his e-mail dated 5-15-19

5/16/2019

Community Services

6/16/2019

E-mail sent
6/3/2019

1

Originator

B

2 Shari Zaret

6 Andy Stack

7 BOD

8 BOD
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

Please send the Design Advisory
Panel (DAP) comments re: the
apartments in Dorsey's Search
along Route 108 to the BOD when
they become available
Provide BOD members with the
link to the Maryland Homeowners
Association Act

05/24/19

Planning and
Community Affairs

When
Available

E-mail sent
on 7/19/2019

6/13/2019

General Counsel

7/13/2019

E-mail sent
6/14/2019

Share the list of Board-related
policies with Messrs. Boulton and
Stack and Ms. Zaret

6/13/2019

General Counsel

7/31/2019

1

Resident Request Tracking Log
FY 20
As of July 19, 2019
A
1

Originator

B

C

D

E

F

Issue/Task Description

Origination
Date

Assigned To
(Department)

Due Date

Resolution

6/30/2019

Dennis
Mattey
spoke to Mr.
and Mrs.
Scott on
6/28/2019.

(1) Remove massive tree on open
space near their house; (2)
Evaluate the stability of other
tall trees on CA open space
adjoining their property; (3)
Tom and Ginger Remove any CA tree in danger of
falling on their house
2 Scott

5/2/2019

3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14

1

Open Space and
Facility Services

